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MEMORANDUM
July 28, 1987

TO: Members of Assembly Select Committee on Tourism
Advisory Committee Members

- FROM: Assemblyman Joseph Palaia
Vice Chairman

SUBJECT: MEETING NOTICE

'(Address comments and éuestions to Anne Raughley, Committee Aide)

: The Assembly Select Committee on Tourism will hold a public meeting on
Saturday, August 8 at 10:00 a.m. in the John A. Taylor Pavilion on 5th and Ocean
Avenues in Belmar. In the event of rain a new date for the meeting will be
established. : - : :

. During the meeting the committee will hear testimony on and discuss beach
admission fees, parking facilities and beach access points. In addition, Assembly
Bill-3152, the Fair Beaches Act will be discussed. _
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ASSEMBLY, No. 3152

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED SEPTEMBER 15, 1986

By Assemblymen VILLANE, PALATA, Littell Assemblywomen

Muhler, Smith, Assembiymen Azzolina, Charles, McEnroe, Watson,
Smith, Schwartz, Assemblywoman Garvin, Aésemblymen Deverin,
Hudak, Girgenti, Kavanaugh, Penn, Rafferty, Zangari, Dario,
Arango, Garginlo, Assemblywoman Donovan, Assemblyman
Schuber, Assemblywomen Ogden, Crecco, Assemblymen Shinn,

- Baer, Colburn, Martin, Genova, DiGaetano, Catﬂo, Miller, Frel-

inghuysen, Shusted, Loveys, Collins, Assemblﬁoman Cooper,

- Assemblymen Zecker, Kosco, Chinnici, Muziani, Felice, Assem-

blywoman Randall, Assemblymen Haytaian, Zimmer, Otlowski,
Marsella, Kline, Franks and Bennett

Ax Aot concerning public access to the beaches of New Jersey
and the amounts which may be charged therefor, providing for,
the preparation of beach ﬁnaﬁagement p'racti"eés ..ialéns, émendixig
P. L. 1955, c. 49, supplementing Title 13 and Title 40 of the
Revised Statutes, and making an appropriation.

BE 1r ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the Siate
of New Jersey: '

1. (New section) This act shall be known and may. be cited as
the ““Fair Beaches Act.” ' . ’

2. (New section) The Legislature finds that the longstanding
public trust doctrine provides that ownership, dominion, and
sovereignty over land flowed by tidal waters which extend inland
to the mean high water mark is vested in the State in trust for
the use by the people for the purposes of navigatioﬁ, fishing, and
commerce; that the New J. ersey 'Supreme Court has asserted that

the public trust doctrine also protects recreational uses; that this
Matter printed in italics thus is new matter.
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right is meaningful only if it carries with it a right of access
to the dry beach adjoining the wet sand beach, and that only
reasonable fees, applied on a non-discriminatory basis, may ap-
propriately be charged for such public access.

The Legislature further finds that the coastal waters and beaches
of this State are invaluable and unique secenic and recreational
resources; that the tourism industry, the second largest in the
State, is dependent upon public access to, and enjoyment of, these
coastal resources and protection of the ocean enviromment; and
that it is State policy to link the receipt of shore protection fund-
ing with the provision of reasonable public access.

The Legislature therefore determines that the State, together
with the municipalities and counties in our coastal areas, have
a special obligation to assure public access to, and proper man-
agement of, these coastal resources without disruption of estab-
lished property rights in coastal communities, and that in order
to meet this obligation it is important for the Legislatufe to
codify the principles enunciated by the State’s courts in apply-
ing the public trust doctrine to the public’s right of access to,
and nse of, New Jersey’s coastal beaches and waters, to clearly
establish the rights of indivinal beach users, the corresponding
requnsibi]iti_eé of municipailties to providé access thereto, and
the obligation. of the State to maximize utilization thereof, in’
part by maximizing transportation alternatives. ‘

3. (New section) As used in this act: '

‘“‘Beach’’ means any area of sand or shingle deposit adjacent
to and fronting the shore of the Atlantic ocean ;

‘“Beach admission fee’’ means the fee or charge made by a
beach municipality for access to, and use of, a beach area;

‘“Beach area’’ means the beaches, bathing grounds, and bathing
and recreational facilities under the control, supervision and care
of any beach municipality or political subdivision of this State;

“Beach municipality’’ means a municipality or other political”
subdivision of the State, an agency or instrumehta]ity of the
ﬁolitical subdivision, or an office, board, body or other agency.
established pursuant to P. L. 1964, c. 185 (C. 40:61-35.1 et seq.)
or the ‘‘Interlocal Services Act,”” P. L. 1973, ¢. 208 (C. 40:8A-1
et seq.) or any other law for the joint provision, maintenance and
operation of a beach area;

‘‘Commissioner’’ means the Commissioner of the Department
of Environmental Protection; :

““Daily admission’’ means the permission for access to, and
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use of, a beach area at any time during one calendar day, or so
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much thereof as the beach area is open to the public and for

[
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which a beach admission fee is charged;

[ ]
[

‘‘Department’’ means the Department of Environmental Pro-

(54
3]

tection;
“Director’’ means the Director of the Division of Coastal Re-
sources in the Department of Environmental Protection;
*‘Public beach’” means a beach which forms part of a place of
public resort under the management and control of a municipality
or political subdivision of this State pursmant to P. L. 1955, ¢. 49
(C. 40:61-22.20 et seq.) or any other law empowering the munici-
pality to maintain, improve, manage, and control beaches and,
bathing grounds and facilities, or the State or federal government.
¢Public trust lands’’ means tide-fowed land lying between the
mean high and low water marks and the ocean covered land sea-
ward thereof to.the State’s boundary. _ B _
4. (New section). a. Schedules for all categones of beach ad- . . .

EI/R

mission fees shall be calculated so as to permit the mumcxpahty
to collect revenues sufficient to recover the municipality’s expenses
.in providing services for the beach area. The allowable expenses
shall include addmona.l costs incarred by a mummpahty directly
attributable to 1ts beach operations, but need mot be limited to
shore protection costs incarred by the municipality, dost of in-
snrance,,sblid_ waste and sewage waste diqusal costs, fresh viater

to-_oo-'-;la:m.pcnmr-lfﬁ&%fﬁgfg

costs, maintenance and personnel costs including those for life- -
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guards, police, first aid, and ticket collectors and any other costs

[y
=

clearly associated with managing the beach area. Beach munici-

S

palities may recover expenses incurred outside the beach area,
but associated with providing services at the beach area, by sub-’
mitting a separate accounting thereof to the division for approval.

=
[

To account for seasonal revenue losses attributable to inclement

=
(5]

weather or other factors which reduce attendance, a beach munici-

[y
N

17 pality may calculate fees on a three-year average cost basis. The
18 fee schedule shall be submitted to the department pursmant to
19 subsection b. of section 6 of this amendatory and supplementary
90 -act. The fees established pursuant to this section shall take effect
21 in the 1988 beach season. » '

22 b. A beach lilunicipality may charge and coilect a separate fee
23 for facilities not routinely provided with beach access, such as
24 lockers, cabanas, umbrellas, and swimming pools, but may not
25 charge and collect any fee or remtal for the use of any structure,
26 facility, or equipment the use of which is mandatory under any
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ordinance or other regulation of the beach municipality as a con-
dition for access to, or use of, the beach and bathing grounds
of a beach area.

¢. No beach admission fee may be charged to persons 11 years
of age or under, or 65 years of age or older, nor shall such fee
distinguish between residents and nonresidents.

d. A beach municipality shall report beach operation revennes
and expenditures in its annual budget submitted to the Division
of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs
pursuant to the ‘‘Local Budget Law’’ P. L. 1960, ¢. 169 (N. J. S.
40A :4A-1 et seq.).

5. (New section) During any time as a beach area is open to
the public and for which a beach admission fee is charged, the
beach area shall be made available to the publie, without distine-
tion or diserimination on the basis of residency or any other factor.

6. (New section) a. Every beach municipality shall ﬁle with the
division a beach access and park;mo plan no later than J annary 15,
1987 and every January 15 of every third calendar year there-
after. Any p£opose& amendments to, or revisions of, the plan
shall be filed with the division but shall not take effect unless
approved by the division. The - division shall act within 45 days
of the date any pfopos'ed amendments or revisions are received.
As part of the plan, each beach mumcipahty shall demonstrate
that its beaches are bemg maintained and provided unobstructed,'-
so as not to impede public access. The plan shall address, but
need not be limited to, the following: -

Availability of pedestrian beach access points;

Availability of rest rooms, changing facilities and bathhouses;

Availability and duration of parkmg within one-quarter mile

of a beach access point;

Availability of lifeguards;

Availability of access to publicly funded shore protection
structures;

Avaﬂabihty of barrier free beach facihties for the physmally
handicapped ,

Availability of access at oceanfront street ends )

b. Each beach municipality shall file w1th the department a
beach admission fee and parking fee plan no later than Decem- ‘

-ber 1, 1987 and annually every January 15, beginning in 1989.

This plan shall include, but need not be limited to, the fee schedule
for beach admission and its cost basis as calculated pursuant to
section 4 of this amendatory and supplementary act, and the
cost and terms of parking within one-quarter mile of a beach
access point.
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c. The department shall, by rule or regulation, adopt standards
for evaluating the access and fee plans required pursuant to sub-
section a. and b. respectively of this section, and shall review
the plans in sufficient time for the mumclpahty to 1mp1ement any
recommendations prior to the forthcoming beach season.

7. (New section) A beach municipality may apply for and re-
ceive from the department a grant to offset the costs of prepar-
ing the beach management practices plan required pursuant to
section 6 of this amendatory and supplementary act.

8. (New section) The department is authorized to issue grants,

- within the limits of funds appropriated pursuant to section 21

of this act or otherwise made available therefor by the Legisla-
ture, to beach municipalities for the cost of preparing the beach
management practices plan required pursuant to sectmn 6 of this
amendatory and supplementary act. o

9. (New section) A beach municipality shall ensure that no
physical barriers or local ordinances unreasonably interfere with
access to, along, or across a publicly funded shore protection
structure.

10. (New section) A beach mumcxpahty may not vacate an
oceanfront street or street end without the approval of the division.

11. (New section) The department shall not grant any permit

.or other approval the effect of which would. be to reduce, limit, .
or eliminate any exlstmg beach or pubhc access way unless the .

department finds and expressly conditions the permit or approval
on the applicant’s providing for réplacement beach area or alter-
native public access to the beach functionally equivalent to that
which will be eliminated or reduced, and protecting such replace-
ment beach area or substitute public access way in perpetuity by
dedication, easement, or similar guaranfee. .

12. (New section) The department shall not approve an 'apfpli-
cation from a beach municipality for State funds for shore/pro-
tection, conservation, or recreational projects if the department

finds that the beach municipality is in violation of this act unless

the failure to fund the project would result in danger to life or
irreversible harm to the natural resources of the State.

13. (New section) All State and federally operated beaches
shall comply with all provisions of the State Sanitary Code gov-
erning public recreational bathing. _

14. (New section) The department, with the cooperation of
the Department of Transportation, shall, to the maximum extent
practicable and feasible, provide and promote the use of public
transportaﬁon between State and federally operated beaches and
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6
proximate parking facilities and public transportation terminal
points.

15. (New section) a. A person or public entity which is an owner,
lessee, or occupant of a beach area owes no duty to keep public
trust lands adjacent to the beach area safe for entry or use by
others, or to give warning of any hazardous condition on the
public trust lands.

" b. A person or public entity which is an owner,' 'lessee, or occu-
pant of a beach area who grants permission to another to enter
upon the beach area only for granting access to public trust
lands or for the essential and reasonably necessary use of the
beach area in order to enjoy the public trust lands does not
thereby: (1) extend any assurance that the beach area or publie
trust lands are safe for those purposes; or (2) comstitute the
person to whom permiésion is granted an invitee to whom a duty
of care is owed; or (3) assume responsibility, or incur liability,
for any injury to person or property caused by any act of persons
to whom the permission is granted.

c. This seetion does not limit the hablhty whiclr would other-

Wise exist for wﬂlful or Teckless failure to 0fuard or warn ao'amst

a dangerous conch_tmn, use, structure or activity or for grossly
negligent supervision where supervision is provided.

d. This section shall apply only to causes of action which accrue
after the effective date of this amendatory and supplementary act.
- 16. (New section)- a. The Commissioner of the Department of -
Environmental Protection, or the Public Advocate at his own-
discretion or on behalf of any aggrieved pért'y, is authorized to
maijntain an action in a summary proceedingr in Superior Court
to secure injunctive, declaratory, or other suitable relief to estab-
lish or protect the public right of access to beach areas as herein
preseribed. ' )

b. In an action brought pursuant to this section the court may,
in appropriate cases, award to the prevailing party reasonable
counsel and expert witness fees.

17. (New section) The department, within 20 days of the
effective date of this aet and pursuant to the ¢‘Administrative
Procedure Aect,”” P, L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 52:14B-1 et seq.) shall
adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the purposes
of this act.

18. (New section) The 'department shall, from time to time,
as appropriate, submit to the Legislature any recommendations
for legislative or administrative action to improve the mechanisms
through which the purposes of this act are carried out.
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19. (New section) Nothing in this amendatory and supple-
mentary act is intended to infringe upon or restrict in any manner
lawful use of private property, nor to convey any rights for a

. person to trespass on private property for any reason.

20. Section 1 of P. L. 1955, ¢. 49 (C. 40:61-22.20) is amended
to read as follows:

1. The governing body of any municipality bordermg on the
Atlanite ocean, tidal water bays or rivers which owns or shall
acquire, by any deed of dedication or otherwise, lands bordering
on the ocean, tidal water bays or rivers, or easement rights therein,
for a place of resort for public health and recreation and for
other public purposes shall have, except as may be provided by
law, the exclusive control, government and care. thereof and of
any boardwalk, bathing and recreational facilities, safegumards
and equipment, now or hereafter constructed or provided thereon,
and may, by ordinance, make and enforce rules and regulations
for the government and policing of such lands, boardwalk, bathing
facilities, safeguards and equipment; provided, that such power
of control, government, care and policing shall not be construed

© in any manner to exclude or interfere with the operation of any
'State law or-authority with respect to such lands, property and

facilities. Any such municipality; ezcept for amy municipality

-bordering on the Atlantic ocean whzch are under- the purview of
 the ““Fair Beaches Act”’ P. L. . e wc. ) (now "

before the Legzslature as this bill), may, in order to provide funds
to improve, maintain and police the same and to protect the same
from erosion, encroachment and damage by sea or otherwise, and
to provide facilities and safeguards for public bathing and recrea-
tion, including the employment of lifeguards, by ordinance, make -
and enforce rules and regmlations for the government, use, main-
tenance and policing thereof and provide for the charging and
collecting of reasonable fees for the registration of persons using
said lands and bathing facilities, for access t{o the beach and
bathing and recreational grounds so provided and for the use
of the bathing and recreational facilities, but no such fees shall
be charged or collected from children under the age of 12 years.

21. (New section) There is appropriated from the General Fund

to the Department of Environmental Protection the sum of

$250,000.00, not less than $200,000.00 of which shall be dedicated

to issuing grants to beach municipalities pursuant to section 8

of this amendatory and supplementary act, and the balance to

defray the cost of reviewing beach management plans submitted

pursuant to section 6 of this amendatory and supplementary act.
22. This act shall take effect immediately.
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STATEMENT ‘

The purpose of this bill is to improve public access to the
beaches of the State. The bill codifies certain principles enunciated
by the State’s courts in applying the public trust doectrine to
public’s right of access to, and use of, this State’s coastal beaches
and waters, and sets forth the rights of individual beach users
and private property owners, and the responsibilities of munici-
palities and the State to improve access.

As provided in the bill, beach admission fees shall be calculated
so as to permit the municipality to collect revenues sufficient to -
tecover the municipality’s expenses associated with operating
the beach, but would exempt persons under 12 and over 65 years
of age from admission charges. The bill would require that beach
revenues and expenses be reported to the Department of Com-

- munity Affairs. o

The bill would further require beach municipalities to submit
plans addressing beach access, admission fees and parking for
approval by the Department of Environmental Protection. The
bill would provide $200,000.00 to be distributed as grants to assist
in the preparation of these plans. In addition, the bill would
presci'ibé cez;ta'.in measures to be taken by local governments to
ensure the public’s right under the public trust doctrine.

The bill would also limit the liability of ownmers, occupants or
lessees of a beach area to persdns nsiiig public trust lands. -

Finally, the bill would require the -State to, with respect to .

"State and federally operated beaches, assure compliance with-
the State Sanitary Code governing public bathing, and to improve
access by maximizing the accessibility by public transportation
from proximate parking facilities and public transportation ter-
minal points. ’

-

BEACHES AND SHORES /
The ¢‘Fair Beaches Act.”’
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ASSEMBLYMAN ANTHONY M. VILLANE, JR. (Acting
Chairman): May I have your attention please? 1I'd like to just
briefly review with you the purpose of the meeting_r—- :

Sometime 1last year, it came to our. attention that
there was a great deal of discussion about the beach fees, and
were they fair or not fair? And it prompted myself and
Assemblyman Palaia to write a piece of legislation, along with
Assemblyman Singer from Ocean County, entitled the Fair Beaches
Act. What we attempted to do. in the piece of legislation was
to really address the problem of putting the 1lifeguards and
safety equipment, cleaning of the beaches, and those things in
the proper prospective with the fees that a municipality would
c_harge. The bill was written last September or October.

We had a hearing really at the Asbury Park Press, at
which nobody showed up except the Mayor and Council members,
and very few members of the public. So it is our intention
through meetings-1like this to really hear from the public for a
change, rather than hear from the people that run the
‘ mun1c1pa11t1es or those people that just live at the shore. We

'thought by hav1ng ‘a hearing here, as we had one in Long Branch
and we intend to have one in Ocean County in Asse_mblyman'
Singer's district-— We want to talk to the people that
'actuaily‘ use the facilities, and those taxpayers in the
municipality that are in the 1long run respon51b1e for the

operation of beaches. _ _ :

So we're going to hear testimony today.' Primarily I
want to hear from the public. We've heard from the Public
Advocate. We've heard from the mayors before. They've agreed
to make some short statements today to talk about their aspect
of what's fair and not fair, and the responsibilities on the
local 1level of a mayor who runs the beaches, and the
responsibiiity of the Public Advocate —— who is the lawyer for
the people of the State of New Jersey -- and his kind of vision
of what's fair in beach fees. We have also with us Senator
Pallone and several mayors from the surrounding municipalities.




That's basically the purpose of the meeting. We hope
that it's fruitful. The reports that generate from the
recordings of testimony here today, will be put together in a
report which will be available to the public. We will from
that information amend or modify or change our work on the
piece of leglslatlon that we sponsored, and hopefully we can
have a piece of legislation that really is fair to the public
and to the municipalities. ‘

The Public Advocate has made extens1ve testimony in
the past. A copy of his formal testlmony is available for
"those in the public that want it.

The Mayor of Belmar will be our first witness. Mayor
Hernandez, who is a new Mayor in the municipality, spoke at
length'at our last meeting at Asbury Park, and I've asked her
to reiterate those remarks today for the benefit of the people
that are here from here town. §So with that——

_ Before I introduce the Mayor, I want to introduce
~ Assemblyman Palaia, who is the Vice Chair of this Committee.
_, Would you like to say a few words?
' ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: No, that s all r1ght ' G'o‘ ahead.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And _Assemblyman Singer - from
Ocean County. I want to thank my co'lleagues‘ for working on:
‘Saturday when other people are enjoying the beaches. And I
want to thank them for their previous meetings, and the ones
we're going to have in the future. I really think this is the
way to talk about beach access, to get down on the beach front.

' With that, I'd like to start with Mayor Hernandez so
she can present her testimony. Mayor? -

M'A‘YOR " MARIA HERNANDE Z: First I'd like to
welcome the Assembly Committee to Belmar. ('witness is notified
that she needs to move closer to microphone)’ Is that all
right? I dorn't want to turn my back completely on everyone
else here.



Thank you very much for coming to Belmar. We're happy
t& -have- you: trerew::--We hope -that {youiwill .be.-able to::have.a
firsthandclook At iwhat:ifadcilitiesawe have, randwhatowe thaveusta
offer the publidi™ & ~rotisria fo Tme s redRial SR ow i iD {Dam

Belmar -is- ‘a one square mile community, with 6700
year-round residents, and from 10,000 to 67,000 visitors a day
in the summer. We go from a small town to a big city
overnight. The costs associated with this transition are
astronomical. Every municipal service is stretched beyond
capacity on certain days.

N Belmar's goals are to—— We are determined to provide
public access to the beaches at the lowest possible cost.
We're working on cost efficiencies this year,' so that we hope -
to be able to reduce some of the rates. We want to provide
them at the 1lowest posSible .cost to the public, but also

without placing a special burden on the taxpayers and residents

of this community. Efforts will be made to determine fair and
equitable parameters to use in calculating appropriate beach
fee rates. In fact, we have a volunteer'comrnlttee working .
right now. 'I'hey ‘are worklng to take all of the costs, the
revenues, and everything, an_d put a package together so we will
have detailed costs and be able to compare them to the
revenues, so that we can come up with what is a fair and
equitable rate to charge the public. '

We do have some that we've presented to the Public’
Advocate before, that were done by our auditor. Of course they
did the best that they could do with it, because as some of you
may or may not know, the municipal budgets do not put all- of
these things in one place in the budget. So Assemblyman
Villane has agreed —— and I think alré-ady .has a team working on
it right now -- to help us to establish a different way of
handling it in the budget, so that we will be able to split out
those costs, and actually give verifiable evidence to the-
Public Advocate and the public of why we're charging what we



charge. We think this is the only fair way to do it, to make
sure that -the charges that are given to the public. .are: fair' and
equitable to:sthe publicyand -alses to-thesr670&tsresidents  aof.
Bélmar randrthéiresidents of the other small municipalities who
cannot afford to bear a heavy burden of tax. So we're going to
continue looking for solutions. ‘

We provide beach  facilities to large numbers of
people. It is expensive. We have a radio playing out 1loud.
(referring to loud radio playing in the audience) Maybe there
was a beach policeman outside that stopped rather quickly.

But the prdblem is that when you provide facilities to
large numbers of ‘people, it's expensive and someone has to
pay. There is no free lunch. Our question is, who should bear
the burden of those costs in Belmar, the beach users, the.
" Belmar taxpayers, the State of New Jersey, the County of
Monmouth, the Federal 'government, or any combination of those
things? 1986- was a poor summer season along the New Jersey
shore, caused by poor weather, water pollution, and some other-
issues. But[ even so, the mostly fixed expenses of a beach
front ‘operation were still there, and had to be paid regardless .
of how much . or how 1little beach revenue was collected.
Taxpayers in small shore municipalities cannot afford the large
tax increases that many of them face this year. It's not fair,
especially to_ our people with large families 1living on low
income, and our senior citizens on fixed incomes. ’

Belmar, as the Public Advocate supports, increased
season fees, and decreased Monday through Friday fees this
year. . Interestingly, season sales went down and daily sales
went up. '

Now, we have a few solutions. We would like to go
along with Assemblyman Villane's Fair Access Bill, which I
think is good. We would like State legislation to define the
appropriate éxpenditures allowed in calculation of beach fees.
We would like the State to provide the municipalities with



their detailed parameters for allowable expenses, with input
from ther communities: ! iBecause ‘We are-theécones!who _really -know
what rneéds Lo becsperntiito providdsthe~facilities that ~you:see
here-~today. ~~We-:wdnt ~to e€stablish cost -accounting procedures
for municipalities to follow in determining  beach-related -
costs, and we want also to allow municipalities to keep home
rule wherever possible, as long as it's not detrimental to the
public. '

Each municipality has its own unique problems. We're
not all alike, and I hope that we won't all be lumped together

because we are different and we have our own unique problems.

. We also would like to see legislation adopted to provide the

option to establish a separate beach type of utility that I
talked about before. ‘Belmar will cooperate in every possible
way, but the serious problems .of small shore -communities must
not be overlooked. Legitimate costs must be allowed in a fee
structure. Even the North Jersey Herald-News editorial
recognized the wvalidity of fa1r beach fee guidelines, and
that's a North Jersey one. _

I'm going to close w1th Just two sentences that '1'd
like to read you, because all the people up north don't
complain about our fees. These are two letters that I received
this week. I Jjust picked two of them out. And I didn't get
any that were negative this week on the beach fees, by the
way. This is from a lady in Jersey City. "My husband and I

are from Jersey City visiting relatives on 15th Avenue, and
would 1like you to know that we enjoying Belmar very much,
| especially 17th Avenue Beach." So they have no complaints, the
letter goes on a little more. ,

_ And this letter is from ‘a person in Chatham, New
Jersey. This mentions the fees very directly, in addition to

some other things about the town. "The fees for the beach have
gone up in the past 39 years —--" they've been coming down for
39 years "-— but to keep it clean and pleasant to vacation it



is worth it." And I think there are a lot of people who feel
it!s: worth<ituifithey. cancget:the-accommodations that:they.need.:
what nsadndol bguessnthe cthings ithatoiwe wanti yowrgentliemen: and
hope that-you gentlemen:wild:;helpi uws with, sischowidg we-finmance
it? Thank you. :

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Mayor. I
think perhaps what I ought to do is just review what the
current law is concerning the operation of the beaches as far
as the State law is concerned.

‘Under the present 1law, 1local municipalities are
entrusted with the responsibility of providing beach access for
the public on public beaches. In the present law.it says that
local municipalities will be allowed to charge a reasonable
' fee. That's as far as it goes. It also speaks to the public's
right of —- Public Trust Doctrine. The Public Trust Doctrine
speaks to the public's right to utilize all the sand that's
washed by the high tide. In theory and in practice the public
ought to be allowed free access to those areas unimpeded, from
. North Jersey to Cape May. That's . a given. That's a -
' constitutional right. It really comes from English law. The
public has the right to lands entrusted to the State by that
law. _ ,
' Local municipalities in the State of New Jersey are
ranging from absolutely no fee for access like Atlantic City,
to Avon and Spring Lake and Belmar and Bay Head and Sea Girt
who have the highest beach fees. There's five municipalities
that have come under attack from the Public Advocate. Those
five municipalities, four of which are in our 1legislative
districts -- Joe's and myself's. —— and the other one i's, in
Assemblyman Singer's district. So we're concerned with the law
being adjudicated by the Public Advocate or the courts, rather
than be a law initiated by the representatives you elect.



So that brings us really to present the case of the

Public Advocate, who has a different point of view than Mayor
Hernandez; not so different, but in what's reasonable and what
is not reasonable. 1I'd like now to hear from Mr. Shapiro from
the Public Advocate's office. I'd like him to share his point
of view.
RICHARD E. SHAPIRO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
and members of the Assembly Select Committee. I'm here today
primarily to listen to what members of the public have to say
about beach fees and beach access, but I would like to briefly
review the major points of the testimony we've presented
previously to the Committee so that people here are familiar
with our viewé. | :

' We start off with a basic assumption about law and
certain legal and factual principles. The legal principle we
really start off with is that under New Jersey law —- the
_Public Trust Doctrine, as Assemblyman Villane has discussed —
vests the rights to the'ocean front and the ocean beaches and
to the ocean, in ‘all the peop'l_e' of the State. Merely because
the _shére communities happenfto be 'gédéképhicélly near ‘those
. areas, does not mean that it is exclusively under t_heir control
and ownership. Therefore, the public has certain rights in
this property, and in the access to the ocean, and in the right
to use the beaches at a reasonable fee, and make sure they are
freely available to the public.

We also have a basic factual finding that we have
uncovered in the course of a yearlong investigation into beach
fees. That is that New Jersey shore communities charge the
highest beach fees in the country. Additionally, that within
the New Jersey shore, the 127 miles of coastline, there are
vast differences between communities and their charges for
beaches; ranging from no charges, as Assemblyman Villane has
‘mentioned, to some communities charging up to $8.50 a day on
weekends.



We've also found that in fact there mey not be a
treémendous. .differerice in the:iseérvices -ori ciéanliiness:-or~ the
facikities :availablé;ibased on whathithe: communities achHardec:
Oftentimes the -charges "from-the community are ‘more a functiom
of attitude rather than strict accounting or the provision of

services. There are some communities that don't charge
anything, and they have the .attitude that they want to
encourage people to come to their beaches. They want to

facilitate tourism, and that's why they're willing to absorb
some of the. costs for their beaches. Other communities choose
to charge high fees for a number of reasons.

There's s:.mply no reason' in the Public Advocate's
judgment for a family of four to have to pay upwards of $34 to
use the ocean and the beaches when this property belongs to
everyone. That's $34 just to get onto the beach, and that's
pﬁtting_ aside the cost of just basically getting something to
eat, some refr_eshment during the day, parking, transportation
costs; so it tanges up to $40 to $50 for a family of four just
“to en;loy a day on property that rlghtfully belongs to everyone
in the State. , , :

As a result of this, we conducted a yearlong
investigation. After - that investigation, we initiated
litigation against four communities in Monmouth County and one
community - in ‘Ocean County, with the ultimate goal of
establishing what are the appropriate charges the communities
can pass on to beach users and what should be a reasonable
beach fee. In the Public Advocate's judgment, there should be
no charges for the beaches because they should be freely
available to the public. But at the very least and in the
interim, we think a reasonable charge should be $2 .per person
' because that will facilitate access to the beaches.

Therefore, we supported a lot of the provisions of
- legislation that have to do with increasing public access, but
we recommended a couple of provisions that benefit individuals



throughout the State. One is that there be a cap on beach fees
gset--at+$2~ And-:the:rsecond .praovision is.-that there be a right
ﬁwueveryesitizémahith the:zoppartunity @®ce: recover::-expert:-fees
darid -;attorney:'s <Tosts-:to - bring> litigation :on his« or Rer . owm
behalf, to ensure that there's free beach access, or no
barriers to beach access. A lot of times State agencies or
individual attorneys may not-— Well, State agencies may not be
willing to pursue individual actions for citizens because they
don't have the resources or because of other priorities that
they may have. This would give citizens an opportunity' to
bring their own actions against communities or individuals that
are preventing beach access or impeding beach access, and
recover attorney's fees and also expert costs. _

' So again, we basically feel that the beaches, under
the Public Trust Doctrine, the beaches should be shared equally
by all citizens of the State, and they should be freely and

readily available. We think in the absence of any clear
guidelines right now, we've initiated litigation. We await and
encourage a legislative solution to this problem, We're

hopeful that one will~bbmé out of the Legislatﬁre'this year.:
And I'm looking forward to hearing any comments and views you
héve, so that we can consider them in our future activities
relating to beach fees and beach access. Thank you very much.
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you wvery much, Mr.
Shapiro. Assemblyman Palaia, the Vice Chair of the Committee,
would like to make a statement and perhaps ask you a question.
ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Just a couple of questions, Rich,
about our méeting in Long Branch recently. Were you aware of
the survey that we took that day? S ‘
. "MR. SHAPIRO: I ‘was aware that you were taking a
survey. | ' ‘ |
| ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Yeah. Just to give you an idea
of how the people felt that day -—- which was very interesting
to me, because I just saw it for the first time today. One of



the questions was, "Do you feel daily beach fees —-" There's a
copy right there “== arectdo thigh2".:Twenty-nine-of: them said;
'iYesyterpoailowsn three saddgqoi!i¥esyditThirty<omervrgaidrde-wasesa
fair daily::beachcfees And!you:rgo "dowrr-the Iist;:-and- it -says,
"Do you feel weekend beach fees are too high?" Twenty-seven
said, "Yes;" too 1low, four; fair, thirty-two. "Do you feel
monthly beach fees are too high?" Eighteen, too 1low; one,
fair, thirty-five said the monthly beach fees were fair. Now
these are people who use the beach. "Do you feel seasonal
beach fees are too high?" Sixteen, too low; one; fair,
thirty-nine. ~ "Do you feel beach admission fees for all of New
Jersey should be free and run by the State?" Twenty-eight of
them said vyes. "Or, run by local municipalities based on
services provided?" Thirty-five said they'd rather have it run
by the municipality. And the last one, "Are parking facilities
for the beach too far?" Thirty-two said, "Yes;" and
reasonably close, Twenty-one said, "Yes."

| Does this have any effect, Rich, on your thinking at
all, when" the people who - utilize the beaches. are saying
bésically, 50%'§raétically said that théy thought it was pr’et‘tyf
fair what's happening now? Just your comment on that.

MR. SHAPIRO: Yes, a couple of things. First of all,
our actions in this area were in response to hundreds of
complaints we've received from citizens throughout the State
‘that say the beach fees have been too high. Unfortunately we:
don't have the kind of scientifically valid survey or poll that
would give us the conclusive information about the views of the
pubiic. I think that there are a lot of concerns I have
about—— Well first of, in Long Branch we're dealing with a
- beach cbmmunity that had relatively low beach fees.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Two dollar fees, yeah.

MR. SHAPIRO: So, there may have been people judging
it on the basis of that beach fee. I think it would be
interesting to have a scientifically--
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ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: That was what I was going to ask
you. ' . ,
MR. SHAPIRO: -—-and statistically wvalid study of
this. I'm -not sure }ultimately how that would come out, or
whether that then should be the definitive answer to how you
deal with the problem. But I do think it would be interesting
to get what are considered to be statistically valid surveys of
this kind of setup. -

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: That's what I was really leading
up to, Rich. Don't you think at this point in time-- The
people who are going to write to you are going to be the
complainers, those who feel they have a problem. Rightly so.
I just feel maybe -- because you are dealing with a very
critical issue here, obviously, and it's vital to everybody —-
~ that some kind of scientific survey should be taken to find out
what do the people really feel on both sides of the coin?
That's why I just wanted to read this, because I didn't know
‘whether the Department had done anything on their own.

. MR. SHAPIRO: We haven t done anythlng,-‘ but I think
also in that survey it would be 1nterest1ng to ask people if
they are aware that the beaches, under the Public Trust
Doctrine, belong to all the people of the State——

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Fine. ’

MR. SHAPIRO: --and should be readily available to
them? And then if they're asked, at that point, understanding
that this should be available freely or readily to them, then
do they think beach fees are too high, or do they think
communities should-- So, I think there would be a lot of
refinement of a survey, but I think that would be interesting
to put into the mix. I'm not saying it should be the deciding
factor, and I understand that you're not saying that either.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: No. I'm not saying that at all.

MR. SHAPIRO: But I think it would be interesting to
put into the mix.
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ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: I think it would give us a little
different handle on what we're talking about. One last-
question. m:When:iyouxsay youid:likeuztoshave:arflat:fee ifuag-all
possible; ‘mhow: ddéd:r=we:?Taccount n~for rrthe wofadt —othat--i-some
municipalities might have 5000 people on the beaches on a
particular day, that another municipality would have 20,0007
Would that mean their costs would be four times more than
possibly the one who is only having 5000? How do we address
that with the flat fee? . :

_ MR. SHAPIRO: Well, we believe strongly in the flat
fee. I know that Assemblyman Villane has talked in the past
about an exemption provision under strict standards that might
allow that kind of individual flexibility. We still think that
the flat fee— And as we've recommended in our report,. some
consideration be given to the Legislature assisting with State
funds -- because these basically belong to everyone' in the
State -- the Legislature aséistimj with some type of subsidy
for those communities that are unable to meet ‘their costs.with
the flat fees. _ e ' :

' But- everything has to be ﬂtighteﬂed up -a lot in the
process, because we're not convinced from our yearlong study
that there's really a tight, very rigorous review and auditing
of budgets. - That's one of the principal reasons we've
initiated the 1litigation. 1In the confines of a court case,
where you can really get at accurate iriformation, and uncover
‘that through various discovery mechanisms, let's really look at
very carefully the beach fees. I think that that whole process
 has to be tightened considerably. '

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Right. Thank you, Rich.

 MR. SHAPIRO: Thank you.

_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I would like you to stay because

Mr. Bob Singer —- Assemblyman Singer -- has a question.
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One of the questions that I think you have to realize
is that the municipalities, in addition to 3just putting a
1lifequard on ‘the beach, the municipalities 1like Belmar for

instance -- and we haven't gone through the specifics of the
cost of running a beach -- but in addition to lifeguards they
have a police responsibility. In addition to the police

responsibility, they must get rid of the solid waste that's
generated along the beach front and the boardwalk, the litter.
They have to get rid of the septic waste that's generated in
the rest rooms that they provide. You know, you just don't
pick up the litter and bring it out somewhere in Valhalla and
get rid of it for nothing. ' There's a cost involved with
removal of solid waste, septic waste, there's cost associated
"with water, there's cost associated with maintaining the
beaches and shore protection, there's accounting costs. The
people that collect the fees, or bring the money to the bank,
or adjudicate'what's reasonable for the beacﬁ fee. :

The real argument I think that we have —— and we're
beq:.nnmg to understand each other even better all the time -——
' is what's reasonable for a mun1c1pa11ty to charge? It isn £
reasonable for Belmar to make a lot of money on the beaches,
and it isn't reasonable for the residents of Belmar to
subsidize the beaches through their property taxes. I think
'you may have a little shadowy area in there. You think some
- towns do that because it enhances the image of the town or
helps the businessman. -Local proP’erty tax owners really don't
want to pay the Waté/r: costs for tourists that utilize the
beaches that belong to the State and Belmar. So I think that
we're in the same ball game. '

One of the things that the Chalr of the Comm1ttee,
along with the rest of the Comm1ttee, is going to request——
The State of New Jersey has put a million dollars aside in the
budget this year. We did that through a resolution in the
Assembly budget process this year. That million dollars is for
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a health study associated with the quality of the water in the
ocean. - There's::i:been. some ' suggestion that there's K diseases
ﬁﬁiﬁgﬁitﬁeduﬁnrihe‘bﬂe&n, 1And fos put:that::story: to restz::or :to
clear.:up thezpdint, ‘we've: decided=to::give:sthe:~Départmernt +6f:
Health, working with the DEP, $1 million to do a study. The
study is going to be one that talks to the people who have
visited the beaches, not the day of the wvisit, but they're
going to take names and addresses, and then they're going to
mail a questionnaire. I have asked the Department to provide
in that questionnaire a series of questions, if they would
agree, about access and fees and ‘fairness of those fees. So
we'll be able to put together some data based on a random
sampling‘throughout the State of New Jersey, not only on health
quallty, but also on the Fair Beach Access question,

MR. SHAPIRO: May- I Just respond very- qulckly,
- Assemblyman Villane? One thing on the latter issue: We've
encouraged, as a result of the Asbury Park Press forum last
year, we recommended 1in our report that there be a

-.-comprehensive approach to any concerns about ocean pollutlon
- And ‘we 've encouraged through that report, and agaln I'd like to

reiterate that today, if anyone -- any public officials, or
individuals -- are aware of individual sources of pollution
- that they think action should be initiated to stop or abate,
we're welcome to those suggestions. That is considered a high
priority within our agency to really address scme of the ocean
pollution prol}l’ems, as well as the beach fees. So I don't want
people to think we're only-- I know ocean pollution is a very
considerable problem that people are facing, and a concern; and
I think we're available to address those types of 1issues as
well as the beach fees issues.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Good. The last thing before I
turn the meeting over to Assemblyman Singer, is that the
Committee is considering an amendment to the bill. And the
bill as it's drafted is some seven or eight pages long. But
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we're considering an amendment to the bill that would implement

a cap on beach :fees:=— I .think two-dollars:is too-low —— but to
inplemented apchwhiecleads somewherentinmhfhesimedium range,srand

then:allowifor .municipalities-that-exceed: that’cap to apply for
a waiver, with justific»atien of .why they  should be waived the
top dollar amount. For instance, if we put a cap on beach fees
at four or five dollars, and a municipality like Belmar said,
"You know, we can't operate our beaches because we have high
police costs or high 1lifeguard costs, or a lot of shore
protection costs. We want to apply for a waiver of that beach
fee cap," then they would be allowed to do that. We haven't
worked out the total language on the bill yet. We really
haven't decided what a medium fee would be as a cap on beach
fees, but we're looking at that as an amendment to the bill.
| With that, I'd 1like to turn the mike over to
Assemblyman Singer, |
ASSEMBLYMAN - SINGER: Thank you, Doc. First of all,
-just -for the record, 10 of my 11 municipalities that I
represent are shore communltles or have beach front, whether it

be bay or. ocean. With the exceptlon of Bay Head, I think that -

‘'was the only municipality in my district that was named to have
excessively high beach fees. I have to share some of the
thoughts that my mayors have shared with me, 1like Mrs.
Hernandez. Let me borrow the 'microphone, Mr. Shapiro, for a
moment. (referring to public address system mike)

MR. SHAPIRO: Oh, I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: No, that will be all right. I
have to share with you some of the thoughts that my mayors who
- represent shore communities are concerned about, 1like Mayor
Hernandez. There are many hidden costs in the operation of a
municipality that are seriously affected by the large influx of
summer residents. A simple thing' like wear and tear on our
roadways. It's something that's not tangible to say how much
it is, but it's a factor. They find that the upkeep of the
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roadways certainly are a very heavy expense on small
municipalities: fPhe fact is; that:youfre :looking: at.-additionalk
polies=dur ingsthewsumner & yetrydu: mustrhave thatiiequipment fox
' them alTl -yedtr—around,’ even though ‘they're* only  used :for::several
months during the summer. We find this is especially a problem
in the Seaside, Point Pleasant area, with the large influx of
summer people. We must be realistic when we talk about the
expense to a municipality, and the impact on the municipality,
when we talk about beach fees.

My concern is that we start to run the beaches 1like
the State runs it, and that's severe problems. An example of
that is Island Beach State Park. They"re talking about running
short maybe $100,000 this year . The money is not in the budget
for them. They may have to close down early, which is a
serious concern. Secondly, there have been concerns out ‘there
'with shortage of help because they haven't had enough money in
the budget. And lastly, too many times —— and we hear this
repeatedly on the radios on the shore areas -— that Island
-.Beach State Park .is now closed because they have 2500 cars
there. We are not allowed that privilege in shore communities
to close down because there are too many cars.

Now, very honestly the problem of it really is the
lack of parking. I think we have to develop a plan to create
parking, to allow people to park on the mainland and take
shuttle buses down to the shore areas. "That would help us out
tremendously. It would help out the beach communities
tremendously with not having all that cbngestion down there.
. It would help people who want to come down here, who are having
problems parking, can't find parking, having it too expensive
to park. And I think we're going to have to look at an overall
'plan to develop a sensible way that people that come down on
the Parkway or the Turnpike are notified that: Number one, for
argument's sake, the parking capacity at Island Beach, or such
and such, is full. We suggest you go over to the shuttle bus
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service and have a large area to park, a convenient area; and
make it easy for people to park, and then come on to the.
beaches. , . =

That's a majbr concern I think you have to 1look at,
because we know. that certainly-- Take Seaside, they want to
provide as much parking as they can, they just don't have room
to do it. And they certainly want the people to come down and
enjoy the beaches, and Point Pleasant wants them. I think most
shore communities -- certainly there is a 1lot of revenue
involved there with the owners of boardwalk areas -—- they want
to see people come down and use our beaches. The main concern
is the traffic flow is horrendous. There's a lack of parking
in many areas. And I think part of fhat responsibility has to
start to be borne by the State. _ -

Again, I have concerns about a lot of hidden costs.
As a former Mayor and Deputy Mayor now —— and I'm sure Mayor
Hernandez will agree, and any other council person will agree
—— there ate,many many hidden costs we can't put -a number on.
It is not'just the cleaning of the beaches. 1It's not just the
" additional péiice. ' There are other costs and factors that have
to be kept into ‘it. And that's my concern, that we won't think
of everything, and then_a’year down the line we'll hear Mayor
Hernandez coming up and saying, "We've run short of money
because we didn't think of everything." We've got to have at
least that type of escape clause in the bill that allows the
municipalities to come back on a yearly basis and say, "We had
a bad season. We didn't have enough money generating through
the things." And not put the burden -- and this is an
important thing -- on the year-around resident.

In my particular area, many of the year—round
residents are on a fixed income. We unfortunately are taxing
them out of being able to live in the shore communities. 1It's
very nice for people to have second homes down here. We like
that. That's very lovely: But the year—around resident, this

17



is their main residence. And the tax base in the shore
communities::is becoming:'outrageoust: And I: ‘think .we have _to the
$elkfish, those of us who are legislators down -here, to make
sure the year-around-resident is bufféred from the high expense
of operating -the beacheS'totally. As a matter of fact, I think
we're going to have to look down the line to sSee some special
legislation to help the tax base out of the year-around
residents in shore communities. Because very very honestly,
more and more I see that people on fixed incomes are finding it
impossible to live down the shore, and they may have lived here
for 30 or 35 years, and now they have to turn around and start
to look inland because they can't afford to live here‘any‘more.

So that's a concern I have, and something that's
certainly going to be affected by your beach fees and
everything else. Thank you, Doc.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Some of the hidden costs that we
"don't realize, in addition to the water and séptic and solid-
wastes, are the liability costs. The liability costs fof shore
mﬁnicipalities have: skyrocketed over the last few years. The
piece of legislation as it's written would provide-a limited
liability to municipalities that provide access to the ocean.
for a fee. That's an important part of the legislation. It's
a very large portion of the costs of running beaches like here
and other towns. Spring Lake for instance has had a million
dollar suit brought against them for someone who tripped on the
sand and hurt their hand. That municipality must guard itself
"against the 1liabilities because the 1liabilities would end up
being the taxpayers' responsibility.

The other thing that Mrs. Hernandez had referred to
was a beach authority. Through the investigations of the
Public Advocate, they .went into municipalities and they went
through their books, and the auditor from each one of the
municipalities laid claim to certain expenses that they thought
was responsible’ from beach activity, and that's how they
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derived their costs. The authority, as Mrs. Hernandez would
- kikev:to: see it formed.~—_.and we're writing the legislation_now
==1%ould rtbhessannfauthority athateuall itheachiceostsriwould mram
through:: —The -municipality:~would..'put..the::money through::the:
authority, and the authority would keep track of those expenses
and those costs associated with running the beaches.

The other thing that I think you ought to know is that
the bill, like the present law, provides that free beach access
be provided to anyone under 12 years old or over 65. That's
" the present 1law, and that would be extended in the new
legislation. _ ‘
And the other thing that Mr. Singer brought up that's
1mportant for us to understand, is that some years you have a
good year and some years you have a bad year. So if you're
going to adjudicate your fees on last year's income, you're
going to have to average those fees over a number of years.
The bill provides that there be a .three-year experlence in
income and revenue from the beaches, and then a modification of
that after you see a trend or. a varlatlon : Some year or two
ago we had ten ralny weekends.- When there s ten rainy weekends‘
you don't lay off any lifeguards, ~and you don't fire any
.policemen. You pay' all: th_ose costs even though your revenues
are down. j ' '

So those are some of the things that are presently in
the bill, and some of the ‘things that we're going to be looking
at for the future. Thank you very much, Mr. Shapiro.

We have another member of the host community, Belmar
Commissioner Al Sheppard. Mr. Sheppard?

DOROTHY ARGYROS: (from audience) Excuse me.
When does the public—— (inaudible) | .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Right after this. You're going
to go on right after this. That's what we're going to do
today. Have you filled out one of one of these for me? (holds
~up forms that witnesses requesting to speak must £ill out)
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MS. ARGYROS: Yes, I have.
ASSEMBLYMAN:: VILLANE: -~ Okay, :fine.' --Do - you..-haver~-a
problem withs your schedule? Th.can zput yeuwon. early. -Youri name

ig?2 o Tl ommnete Lot odce cesmipid pUlT LILC @iy LLU.s.The £hs

‘MS. ARGYROS: No. It seems that every time we come to
a public hearing, there are a whole bunch of apologies and

talkers and so forth, and we don't get to say-— (inaudible)
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You're going to get to speak

today. We're going to stay here as long -- .to hear everyone.

MS. ARGYROS: Thank you. ' '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Councilman?
ALFRED J. SHEPPARD: It's very obvious to me
what we're talking about here now is control over the beach
front, and not necessarily beach fees or access. We're looking
at who is going to control the beach front, and what type of
services are going to be offered.

Now, we're being criticized for offering the services
at the level that we have in the past and charging for them a
good rate, but a rate in wh1ch we ve been able -to flexibly
offer more 11feguards, ‘more access, more ramps; ‘rebuild our
boardwalk in the wintertime -- something which the State used
to support us in,v_and has over the years let us do more and
more on our own, and utilize our work force

I really think that the issue comes down to one of
control and that's.one in which Belmar really has to fight now
to maintain it, to offer the beach front that we've known in
the past. We're not necessarily talking about fees or a cap on
fees. We're talking about who is going to control the rates in
the future, and who is goingv to control the access. So I think
when the public comes up and talks about it, they . should keep
that in mind. It's more to the issue than just the rate.
They're using that as a wedge between the town and the creation
of a new commission. So think about that very carefully.
Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much,

Councilman:~v=*I""Want €a”_thank Belmar for: hosting the meeting
todaygzx - Whén rwer talked: :-about - it,::theMayor-aistepp&d i.right
forward and said, "We'd be happy to have it there." 1It's a

ticklish subject, especially when you're under indictment from
the Public Advocate, but we want to thank you for your
hospitality, Mayor. |
Mrs. Argyros, if you'll just excuse us. I have one
more person testifying today who represents this district in
the Legislature. I'd like to have a statement from Senator
Pallohe, Frank Pallone.
SENATO_R‘ FRANK PALLONE, J R.: Thank you.
I'l1l be very brief, Dorothy,'because I know you want\tovspeak.
| MS. ARGYROS: (from audience) You I'd like to hear.
SENATOR PALLONE: Oh, okay. (laughter)
ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Use the microphone, Frank.
~ SENATOR PALLONE: Oh, the microphone. : ~
- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I'm sorry she didn't 1like to
hear from the rest of you guys. | -

SENATOR PALLONE: No, no. She likes to hear from all

.of you, I'm sure. :
_ I mainly came today because I did want to hear from
the publlc, so I'll be very brief.

I just wanted to say that .I do feel that legislation
is neceésary. That's why I have sponsored in the Senate the
Fair Beaches Act, particularly because of the things that were
mentioned by Mayor Hernandez. And that is that right now the
towns really do not know what they can charge for and what they
cannot charge for. Frankly, I feel that they should be able to
charge not only for the direct costs -- such as the lifegquards
and the ticket takers -—- but also for the indirect costs
associated with maintenance of the beaches, such as the
insurance, such as the percentage of police or solid waste or
litter control, whatever has to be done in the summer as part
of beach maintenance. '
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Therefore for that reason I have consistently opposed
a~twa..dollar ‘cap+w:: I~ do. think: that the twa:dollar cap-.-is
arbitrarywiicWe weakly dravenitugotten any: impgt:frem=ghe: Public
Advocate &to. say:why twoi:dcklars:as opposed: torthree:of four-or
one,. or whatever. 1It's just an arb.itrary figure that has been
put out there, and really has no basis in terms of the
practical costs that the muhicipalities do incur. And I really
do feel that if we had a two dollar cap in a lot of the towns
that are now charging more than that, that the excess costs
would in effect go to the local property taxpayers; that they
would have to make up the difference. So, I think that it is a
mistake for us to talk about capping the beach fees per se.
And what I would like to see, which is in the legislation, is
‘simply a reasonable regulation of beach fees based on actual
- costs that the municipalities incur.

I also think that it's a mistake for us to talk about
the State taking over the beaches, as has been suggested by the
Public Advocate. I do not feel —— and I think most legislators
do not feel -- that the State would do a better job of
Voperating ‘the beaches than the mun1c1pallt_1es And to talk:
about charging two dollars, and then having the State pay the
difference to the towns— We all know, those of us in the
Legislature, that a lot of promises are made to municipalities
about subsidizing their budgets. But when the time comes to
- actually provide the money, the money is cut, the State aid is
cut, and we're not able to make the commitments that are made
in the past. So I think the talk about subsidizing the towns
to operate the beaches is just pie in the sky, literally.

The last thing that I wanted to mention is that I
think one of the most important aspects of this legislation,
and something that we're not going to get into really today in
Belmar because Belmar does not have a problem —— at least from
what I can see — in terms of physical access. But we do have
a problem in many locations in this State with physical access
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to the beaches. And one of the major factors, and one of the
major~ provisions-:of this: Fair-Beaches Rot is: tiyihg: to-deak
with cthe,y probdemsof yphiysicak access; «tg maker stiremthat $rréet
érids ~ckeading.:to-ithe beaches: = ins various: ‘locatiens~~are--not
vacated; to make sure that fences . are not put up and other
barriers that make it difficult for other people to walk up and
down the beaches; and also to provide a reasonable amount of
parking. .
And perhaps the most important thing that was
mentioned —— this is the last thing that-I'll mention today --
is the fact that with this legislation, for the first time,
citizens would have the right to go out and enforce their
rights in the municipal court or at any level in any of the
courts, when they see physical barriers to  the beach front.
And one of the things that we encourage in the legislation is
to have towns pass ordinances that would allow municipalities
to go into court when they find that they do have problems with
physical access to the beach.

I just want’ to thank the Comm1ttee, because I thmk
'that these hearlngs really are very frultful and we're
learning a tremendous amount. Thank you, Assemblyman. '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Frank. 1In
addition, in the bill as is presently written —— and I'm not
sure that in the Senate version it's in there-- But a big
problem' that we'd have in municipalities is the municipalities
giving away the ends of streets that intersect with the ocean,
in this way absolving themself of the responsibility of
liability of access to the beaches, but in the same breath
they're denying access to what is the public's right to the
beach front. So in the bill there's that provision that you
can't give away the ends of street.

It's always a provision in the bill where you would
not allow municipalities to give away Ocean Avenue to adjoining
property owners. In the municipality of Long Branch, which
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traditionally for over a hundred years the public has had the
right to proceed along~Oceann Avenue:;,-and “to view:the:ecean, .and
0 :stop::and:rpatrkmand gain-laccdess;othat muntcipality gave awﬂa}ééa‘.
portion of that ‘town, that Ocean:-Avenue;-to ‘adjoiming property
owners. And the property owner who got that piece of property,
that road, for nothing, proceeded to put a blockade across the
road so that people could not really have access except through
a narrow strip, which is only about 15 or 18 feet wide. So the
bill would prohibit towns from doing that for whatever reason
they decided to do it, without getting permission from the
State. We think that it's a right of the public to be as close
to the ocean as possible, and the right of the public to gain
- access to the beaches. So that's also in the bill.

I just want to point out that Councilman Hillman is
‘here. Would you like to make a statement, Mr Hillman? Joseph
" Hillman, Councilman of Belmar.
JOSEPH HILLMAN, J R.: (from audience) Thank
you, Assemblyman. Just one very brief-- - (inaudible) I would
.not have spoken except for a comment that Senator Pallone made
just a moment ago about the appearance of Belmar not having :
access—

ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: Why don't you use the mike? It
will make it easier for the people to hear you. ‘

COUNCILMAN HILLMAN: In relative terms, Belmar does
not have the same access problems that you and Senator Pallone
were speaking of earlier, but we do have some that need to be
addressed. First, believe it or not, we have privately owned
property on the beach in Belmar down at the Belmar Fishing
Club. We have a county road right outside the store that
impacts heavily upon beach access because of traffic north and
south through‘town.

Because of the size of our beaches —-— and if you look
around, they're beautiful, they're clean today -— they're very
expensive to keep clean.
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But there are many people who come here and there's
inadequate: parking- for. them.. Most..of the parking extends .back
intatthe:résidentiad zones;:which need to:be:protected-becausez
as -beautiful+asrthe-beact:~is [ ~its use~is.generdlly::incomsistent
with those that you wish to have in normal residential zones.

The highway system 1leading to Belmar needs to be
looked at on a regional basin. The Shark River basin generally
needs to be properly planned. The Hudson River has three
bridges crossing it into New York. We have four;iand they're
all drawbridges. The traffic that backs up and the gridlock
that's caused by those drawbridges adversely affects our
business district and hurts our merchants. The section of
Route 18 from I-195 to the Brielle Circle needs to completed to
allow peopie to travel to the shore, to come to_Belmar, and go
south. There needs to be a true interstate connection to
Asbury Park to allow a distribution of traffic off of I-195
north. : »

We appreciate the fact ‘that you're treating this
3prob1em on a reglonal ba51s, that you're looklng at more than

just the ‘cost of the beach fees. We would like- you, in“
addressing the problem -- even though you may not be able to
address them directly in your bill -- to pass on the messages

that you've received from the people here today to the other '
agencies in State government, to the other committees in the
State Legislature,'to direct their attention to those problems.

We cannot separate the beach from the people who live
here, and I think that's a very 1mportant message ‘to your
trust. Thank you, Doc.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank  you = very much,
Councilman. We're going to start the testimohy from the public
now, but I just want to tell you that there's another piece of
legislation that's become a priority, not only with the
Governor but with both the Senate and Assembly, called the
Coastal Commission. And a Coastal Commission will focus very
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directly on the Jersey shore. It will deal with development,
dealswith- the ‘master::plan;-deal:with pollutionjr-and~eventually
probably wikl deal ~withothis - bill :whrich:-wikl ;. bei salkingabout:
beach-:access -and~beach:fees. -“So:'that"“s ~a~different piece -of
legislation, but becomes it becomes entwined in this whole
story of the Jersey shore.

I'd like to start the testimony with Ms. Sharon
Surrette. , o , : _
ROBERT ANGTUTL S K I: (inaudible comment from
audience)

ASSEMBLYMAN @ VILLANE: Oh, vyes. Is that Robert-—-
Okay. Why don‘t you just sit there. Mr. Robert Angulski, I
hope I pronounced it correctly. Mr. Angulski has notified this
Committee prior to the meeting today that he wanted to
testify. And he's on this formal list of people that we've
just run through. With your permission, Robert, may we just
hear from Miss Surrette first? :

MR. ANGULSKI: Yes, sir. L .
‘RICK- McDONOUGH: (from audience) Mr. Chairman?.

' " ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes, sir? ST
MR. McDONOUGH: (inaudible comment from audience)
'ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Rick McDonough, you've also——

Well, why don't we do it in that order, Bob and then Rick,
after you, Sharon.
SHARON SURRETTE: Okay. All right.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you. Before you start--

MS. SURRETTE: Shall I talk in- one of these?
(referring to microphones) S

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes, would you just fill out one
of these. Anybody who would like to testify in the formal
hearing, if you'll £ill out one of these slips of paper.
They're right here at this front desk. This young lady with
the hat on will give you one. They're right at the end of this
table.
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‘ I'm sorry. Would you please give us your name and
address? '

' MS. SURRETTE: All right. 1I'm Sharon Surrette. I've
lived in Wall for 20 Years, and I live at 1815 0ld Mill Road in
Wall Township. '

I believe I wrote a letter to the Advocate's office
about two years ago because the beach fees were becoming
exorbitant. And what really infuriated me was when they
started charging for the meters up to mldnlght I can't
tolerate the sun, but I always bring my children here and all
their friends. And I felt that I was doing a public service,
plus protecting my own children and my friend's children by
sitting on the beach or Walking the boardwalk, trying to keep
an eye on them. I can't tolerate too much sun, so it's
ridiculous for me to pay eight dollars for a day to come up and
sit on the beach for an hour while the children take a dip.
But . I do like to w,aik the boardwalk, and it became really quite
- annoying to me, after living here for 20 years, to have to put
25 cents in the meter every half hour up to m1dn1ght, no matter
i what time you come ‘here. ' o

I think the beach fees are too high, eontrary to what -
some people have said previous to me. We also host foreign
exchange students every year in the summertime, and it's very
embarrassing to have to tell them, "Well, you have to pay five,
six, seven, eight dollars, for one  day to come on the beach.”
They're on}.y here for one week, and naturally I feel obliéated
to pay that fee for them as a host. We have always managed to
get one day from the town of Belmar to bring the students here,
but when most people that host students or have families,
there's more than one. You're not buying one beach badge.
You're buying four or five beach badges, or even a seasonal
badge. You're not buying just one badge, you're buying several
for your teen—agers. In addition, I always had to worry that
my children when they're 14 —-— especially my son —— they would
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decide that they weren't going to pay for this beach, and they
would be hopping over the fences, and then I'm worrying that
they're going to:-be-picked:up -bhy:the policérandreverything. I v
Iivod in FosUpposezilastlys: afew years-agésthey:started hiring
the patrols: As I would come up here daily with the children
and their friends and be walking the boardwalk, I believe that
they were more interested in studying the bikinis on the beach
then they really were looking for beach badges. And a few
times I stopped some of the men and I'd say, "Why are you
staring in that one direction for so'long?" "Oh we're looking
for beach badges. We're looking for beach badges." i

I think that the fees, and the parking, and the

patrols, have discouraged families. And as far as I'm
concerned, if you want a nice beach front, and you want to
attract business, you're talking about families. . The only

people that can afford to pay these exorbitant rates are single
people, or people that are down here on vacation; not the
families that live here all year around. Thank you. ‘

, ~ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Sharon.
Sharon? . - S o

ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: Through the Chair? I just wanted
to also let the public understand the impact when we talk about
summer residents on communities. Ocean County has a year-round
population of approximately 350,000 people. We swell to well
over 900,000 people during the summer. The bulk of that is
down the shb:e communities. It is a tremendous impact on these
communities. Now again, I don't think anybody is against
people coming on the beaches, and want - to make them
reasonable. . But I think there's also an understanding of the
tremendous impact on municipalities, whether it's policé/
whether it's roadways, or whether it's anything else 1like
that. It is a very difficult hardship. And we must certainly
keep that in the back of our mind when we talk about that type
of sizable increase from 350,000 to over 900,000.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Bob, would you just state your
name-‘and-address? ~oon it funoos,  and thon ! woooyliong o Lhat
they'zc MRGSANGUESKI: L -Yes: :My:imame :isz Robert<aAngulski. W I
live in Bensalem,zPehnSYlvaniaffﬁI*Ve“been‘fvilowing"thé‘beach'
access issue for the past year in the Asbury Park Press with a
great deal of interest, and that's why I made a telephone call
earlier this week. - |

Briefly, I visit the seashore once a week at a
minimum, usually twice a week — Sandy Hook, Gateway National
Park, Point Pleasant, Seaside Heights, Wildwood, Atlantic City,
and about once a year Ocean City. That's why your beach badge
would be very difficult for me as an individual.

I'd like to address the Mayor of Belmar. I think the )
concept that if this ocean and beach did not exist, the town of
Belmar would no 1longer cease (sic) to exist. The 67—
(audience reacts negatively) .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, no. dJust a minute.

MR. ANGULSKI: Sorry. ‘ B ‘

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: . Please, at -any hearings vthat :

we're at, I really ask the indulgence of the people to listen
to somebody's point of view. I really would prefer that there
be no jeering of that type. Thank you.
' MR. ANGULSKI: It is my personal feeling that if the
ocean and this beach was closed, this community would cease to
exist. That's my personal feeling. And I think that concept
is being ignored here today. _ N

Just to continue-- I don't believe this beach fees
and beach access bill is going far enough. We're not .
discussing any health and.safety issue in this bill. I had a
very unfortunate issue two to three years ago at Seaside
Heights, where my daughter got hit by jellyfish. I went to the
nearest lifequard. He referred me to Seaside Heights lifeguard
stand on the beach. They told me the remedy: fresh water,
alcohol, hydrogen peroxide, etc. When I asked for these
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emergency solutions, they had none. They refused to give me
any.- -They-told-me the nearest hospital was four to five blocks
away. I miad asgpoungsteryiin pain.:.:aShe iwasicimra stateszof -——
very very::uncomfortablev And yeti I received -no:--hélp. :+E think
that the issue of medical attention on the beach should be
looked at. I think it's being ignored -- such as a jellyfish
bite, but, whatever the case may be.

We also have to consider we have a very small beach
right here. If we take Wildwood, we take Seaside Heights, the
beach 1is a 1lot wider. And to go from the beach to the
‘ boardwalk, the beach to the main road, we have a hike. Again
in Wildwood we're talking about a half a mile walk. I think we
should also look at emergency transportation to go from the
beach to emergency medical services, or the same way to have
emergency medical services come to the beach -- such as a four
wheel drive vehicle, or a new thing called "ATV' - to
transport emergency medical personnel. ‘

Right now, I think the lifeguards are not trained in
basic or advanced first aid, or CPR.. Maybe I'm mistaken, but
at this incident two or three years ago I sought first aid and
received nothing. They had no emergency - showers, no
medication, and I was on my own; a very very cold attitude by
the lifeguards. I have a very nasty taste in my mouth from
that incident. ' '

Just to continue on, I'm just questioning=- You would
like to provide services for the people coming to wvisit you for
the day. Where are the showers at the beach exits? Many many
‘beaches do not have any type of shower or shower facilities.
If you want to encourage people to visit your beach, and there
is a source of water nearby, kindly put a shower head or heads
in, similar to Gateway National Park and Point Pleasant.

To continue: No one has talked about handicapped
access to the beach. There are no wooden sidewalks for the
handicapped, senior citizens, or a person with a broken leg, to
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get down to the ocean. It seems 1like the handicapped are
completely . ignaored, : and.:-I~:+woender- why:+ I~ realize: therei's...an
expense.l! Howevercionce=a wooden :sidewadkwis eérecied; it can be
removed-and::reptacedsthe.next.year. : :susivsd no Lol oTEink
Another point, and this is a point of contention:
Point Pleasant Beach, Jenkins Beach next to the jetty, there is
a fence blocking the jetty. The jetty I understand was built
by the Army Corps of Engineers, with taxpayers money, and yet
Jenkins Beach has a fence blocking the jetty. And a person
wanting to take photographs or walk the jetty, is not permitted
unless you have a beach tag, even though you don't want to walk
on Jenkins Beach. I think that the private ownership of a
beach, such as Jenkins Beach, is unconscionable, and especially
.this fence built by the Army Corps of Engineers. _
- To continue: Point Pleasant Beach has a fee of $3.50
during the week, $5.00 on the weekend. This does not ensure a
clean beach. Two weeks ago I went two days in a row, and there
" was litter on the beach. It was not picked up, and yet they're
| charging the $3.50 for a beach f_eé.._ I think I understand why .
' the high fee at Point Pleasant Beach, Jenkins Beach. I looked
in -their garage and there's ‘two brand new Porsches, which I
think the public is paying to support. The owners of the beach
have two brand new Porsches in their garage. ‘
Again, to address the Mayor of Belmar, your $8.00
fee—— I can't afford to spend $8.00 to go on your beach
today. I will have to go to another beach. You are in effect,
by your high beach fee, keeping me from Ausing/ your beach today.
Again, the safety issue. Please look at all aspects .
of hahdling a medical emergency on the beach, transportation to
and from the beach for medical personnel, and such things as
having lifeguards equipped with a portable radio or telephone
so they can be in contact with first aid personnel. I think
this is a real problem. If a person has a diabetic emergency
or a heart attack, given soft sand, you have a problem. Thank
you.
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-ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: May I have the microphone a
secondm"u.Bob,-“conld you 'wait:. just-one ‘second?.” Thank  you:.:
(Assemblyman:«Pslaia «is:: handed-mlcroph@nﬁ'tn.the‘publlcﬁaddress
system). - 7 covioTTT oo e e

Mr. Angulski, you made a statement before that Belmar
- would cease to exist. I think that was a rather poor choice of
words. You have to understand something. Before the beaches
in Belmar were this popular, way back when, most of the
citizens that are here today were here then. We still had a
great town. Believe me when I tell you, one of the problems we
have with visitors is they only see a community for one block
-— the block from the beach —— in. And that was one of our
problems with New Jersey. - They only saw our State from the 4
Turnpike or the Parkway, and they never saw the beautiful
- communities that we have. _
| You have to understand something in Belmar -- and I've

lived here all my life in Neptune and Ocean Township. We have
good schools here in Belmar. We have good government in

Belmar. And we. have good.people.in-Belmar. And I'm not just

- saying that politically, Bob, believe me. I've been here all

my life, 60 years on this earth I've been around this area.
This statement is way off base. Beaches or not, there will
always be a Belmar. ‘

MR. ANGULSKI: May I rephrase?

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Sure. | | .

~ MR. ANGULSKI: In rebuttal, before I leave, it's my

humble opinion, excluding Belmar, "that the majority of beach
communities existing next to a beach would cease to exist if
suddenly the beach or ocean would disappear or would close.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA. ~ Okay. It's your opinion. I
don't agree with you.

MR. ANGULSKI: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Right.

MAYOR HERNANDEZ: One minute?
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you. 1It's nice to have
Yeu::cOme tcr';testify-; Bob. I real-ly- mean that....I think.it's a

froms= Pennsylvanla journey here to our State. And we're really
happy to have you. ‘ ' . o

Mayor Hernandez, this can't be a debate today. We're
here to take testimony. But Mrs. Hernandez can not stay
still. Maria did you want to make just one short statement?

MAYOR HERNANDEZ: One second. Thank you very much for
coming-- (Audience interrupts with inaudible comments) It is,
and I will just take 30 seconds.

Sir, if you come to Belmar, we have a fully staffed
first aid station. We have showers by the géte when you
leave. We are next week starting a handicapped ramp on 19th
Avenue, and our lifeguards have handheld radios. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We're not going to have debates
“here today. We're going to go down with the 1list. The next.
person-— (inaudible comment from audience) You're going to be
rlght after the people that have s:Lgned up prior to this. The
next person who s1gned up to speak at this publlc meetlng prior
to coming here today, is Mr. Rick McDonough, Ocean Township
resident. We're going to have you on next. I think you want
to go on. He has a 15-page report that he's going to leave
with the Committee. We'll have it entered into the record, and
we've asked him to summarize so we can get to everYbody here
today. v o

MR. McDONOUGH: Thank you, Chairman Villane, members
of the Committee. 1I'm Rick McDonough. I 1live at 273 Michael
Avenue in Ocean Township. That's not beach front property,
however, I do own someAbeach'front property located in Dover
Township in Ocean County. | |

My remarks here today are going to be directed towards
the issue of beach access for the >pub1ic, as it relates to
private property. I don't intend to talk about municipal
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beaches or quasi municipal beaches, although we necessarily
have - tor:consider “that ::issue ‘when-'we talk abeout ptivate:beaches
becausethes Pubkl ic cfrust - rPoctriner - —<sombdche ks the hfoundaticn-
for:: acgess-itenialliu: bhé:"beaches*=—uzﬁb§gins with -the- public
beaches, and is..used by those who would argue that there should
be public access to private beaches.

The report that was issued in May by the Public
Advocate contains a number of internal inconsistencies and
mistaken premises. The Public Advocate argues that based upon
the Public Trust Doctrine, the State of New Jersey should
purchase all beaches in New Jersey, both public and private.
The Public Advocate report goes on to state that based upon a
number of New Jersey Supreme Court decisions, that in the
Public Advocate's opinion the State of New Jersey could
exercise its eminent domain power and take all the beaches but
not have to pay for them, because in the Public Advocate's
. argument the Public Trust Doctrine says all the beaches belong
to all the people, including the private beaches.

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE That's right. _H_e;'s
absolutely right. ' - o 3 |

MR. McDONOUGH: Now that's what the Public Advocate
_says. o ' .
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, I'll tell you. Everybody is
- going to have an opportunity. If you want to c¢ome up to
testify -— and you're going to testify néxt —— please give
whoever is up here the co_urte.sy of listening to them without
comment. I appreciate that. Go ahead.

MR. McDONOUGH: That's what the Public Advocate says,
and that's what the New Jersey Supreme Court has implied in its
decisions, starfing in 1972 and continuing through ‘84 in the
Bay Head decision. However, the United States Supreme Court,

in the two decisions handed down this year -- the First
Evangelical Church case and Nolan vs. the California Coastal
Commission -— has made it c¢lear that there are Federal
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Constitutional limits on what a state or a municipal government
¢an do- when::it: comes "tcr"-pri-va:te aprdpéﬁty—i.-—a-ﬂ: cam';’tf'emptras'i-ze :

be no taklng of-prlvate property for publae user-w1thoute;ust
compensation being paid." The Public -Advocate..seems_to have
forgotten about that. The New Jersey Supreme Court seems to
have forgotten about that. You, members of the Committee, can
not forget about that. No matter what is said by the people
today, no matter what is said by people in the future, no
matter what your constituents say to you, you cannot forget the
Constitution. - And the Constitution says, if the State takes
~it, it's got to pay for it. .

Now we've heard some testimony here today from the
private citizens, the Public Advocate, Senate representatives
‘here, and they've said that — or at least the Public Advocate
has said that the beaches should be free, no charge. Well fair
enough. While we're at it, let's make all golf courses free,.
~all the ski 1lifts, all the tennis courts. I'm being facetious
"here, but you can see my’ ‘point. . Why not° Why Should 'the

' beaches be free? I mean, everybody knows nothlng is free.

Somebody is going to pay for it somewhere. And if it's not the
' users, it's going to be everybody in this State, whether they
- use the beach or don't use the beach. I don't think -- and I
think a lot of people here agree with me —-- that it's realistic
to say that the beaches should be available to everybody for no
charge. Perhaps they should be available to everybody, but to
say no charge is absolutely absurd.

There's a lot more that I could say on - this, but
Chairman, members of the Committee, you have my report on
- this. I thank you for giving me the time to speak before you

today. | | . |
| ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Rick. That
concludes the testimony of the people who have submitted prior
requests. to appear before the Committee. ‘ We'll now proceed
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with the people who have signed up today that would 1like to
speak before the.. Committee, -and we're .going to: startorwith
Berathy.: czDorothy;uowouldyou - read-f-yaum:—:rnameagnd' dddress sinta
the record?‘ ot f“’“"-,-“.‘..l‘.-'?'f HAME S-SRt 1R = T Wit

"MS. ARGYROS: ' Dorothy Argyros-— Can you hear me?
(witness s'&itches microphones) My name is Dorothy Argyros, and
I live at 1338 Tenth Avenue in Neptune. 1I've lived there for
23 years. _

First of all I would like to say I wonder if you
gentlemen know how frustrating it is. The public has .one
chance to speak. 'It's today. The people who have gotten up
and taken an hour and a half of our time, I'm happy to hear
what tﬁey had to say, but they have oppbr'tunities to express
themselves in many other ways. You could really get a heart
attack_sitting. up here 1listening to comments from people who
have many other ways to express themselves and to impact upon
what is done in the State. v

I think following up the last discussion, I'm going to
say a few truths, that everybody knows but you never hear
said. Nobody built the beach. God -- or whoever —-— put the
beach' there. The towns did not put the beach here, and so long
as the State and the Army Corps of.Ezigineers do the jetties,
keep building the jetties, and keep the ocean back, there's
going to be a beach there. If the towns back off and do
nothing at all, .there's going to be a beach there. And if the
towns backed off and did nothing at all, maybe I could just go
down there and sit for a peaceful hour on the beach.

Now what happened was, some local residents decided to
create local resorts that would profit the hotels, that would
‘profit the merchants, that would profit the restaurants, etc.
The merchants make money off the tourists, -and the rest of us
who live here suffer. We don't make money off tourists. We
suffer congestion. We suffer higher prices in the summer, as
everybody knows. And we suffer high beach fees that many of us

i
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can't afford because we have families, we have guests coming
down ,- we tan! t ' take them -to' .the-beach.: . That:is why we::dre-not
o ~the’ bedchr - tov.answer! thei  questionnaires::when people: come
around-and “say, "Do you think the beach fees are fair?" That's
a pretty specialized little group you're asking. You're asking
the people who could afford to get on the beach. I think you
should take those questionnaires off the beach and say, "Would
~you be on  the beach today if you could afford it?" Your

numbers might be a little different. '

Okay. It's another case where many have to pay,
including the taxpayers here, so that a few people can get the
goodies; and I'm talking about merchants. My feeling is that
the State should take over the beaches so that we local
residents can go on there, and I think they should charge a
surtax against those people who are profiting off the
tourists. I think the tourists pay too much money. I think
they should charge a surtax to the profiteers, the people who
make the money off the tourists. That's the only fair way of
d01ng 1t o ‘ ' ‘ | o
' ' I'came”hé:e With a bunch of horror stories from myself -
and my friends, who have suffered this myself for 23 years.. We
moved to the area because of the beach. We are now priced off
' the beach. We enjoy the beach in September. During the summer
it's hell. Traffic is terrible. We really can't enjoy the
beach until September comes. We don't get anything but
disasters for this beach -- that we came because we love it and
enjoy it. ‘

I am not going to take the time of the people here to
read all the horror stories. I'll just. mentlon a few that
relate dlrectly to beach access for the cost. B

In Elberon, there used to be a little free beach
tucked in between the Takanassee and I think the Elberon Beach
Club. I'm not sure what beach club it was. My son-in-law told
me about it. I started going there. It was hard to find.
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You've got to find a little path between bushes, and you have
to know it's -there. :~One :day I.:went. - The ‘attitude of. the
people whos~have abrwgated:: thezmontroel rof wthe beaches ko
themselves;, <and who are privately profiting- frem “this, do..not
like the public to have _access. So one day I went to the
little hidden beach, and for about a mile around, there were no
parking spots. That's attitude. Someone mentioned attitude.
It is attitude. 1It's whether you feel you have the right to
abrogate unto yourself something that God put there for
everybody, and make a private profit from it. |

A second story and then I'l1l do three. One day I read
some cases about some beaches. To my surprise I found out the
courts'say‘the beaches are open to public east of the main high
water mark. I don't know where that is, but it's got to be
somewhere down near the water. And it seemed that if you could
get there before nine a.m., or if a friend would let your cross
their property, or if you could get there on a State owned
jetty, you'aren‘t trespassing. So I went up to a Belmar beach |
guard and I.said, “"Hey isn't this true? Couldn't I--" You
know. The beach guard said, “Oh no." I said, "Well what would. .
happen?" He said, "Well a guard would come up. The guards
have the right--" <this is the rule "~-the guards have a right
to go up to you anytime, anywhere on the beach and say 'Do you
have a beach badge?' and if you don't, you better get off. It

doesn't matter how you got on there.” So I haven't tried that
in Belmar. | '

My favorite story is Sea Bright. It's a story of

~attitude, and it's -a story of cheating the people -- a few

people cheating the others. 1In Sea Bright, as you know, there
are beautiful homes running along parallel to the ocean. Then
there's a street, then there's a parking lot, and then there's
a large sea wall with the ocean right behind it. You can't see
the ocean from the street. The sea wall is quite large. And
the riparian owners, the owners of the homes, have built little
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stairways and porches so that they can get and go over to the
beach. - And .invariably .on: allthose=Tittle 'stairwaysicyour have
signs7 "NouTrespassingzs=Keep Qff. ccPrivdte Propertywéaciren t&
storm:domes alohg,::like: the one.:dirmmMarch:iaicouple:of yearscage::v
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: '86. o _
MS. ARGYROS: '86, thank you. It damages the wall.

Suddenly, the homeowners are screaming, "Repair our wall. Our
homes are in danger." And maybe the government drags its feet

a little because that's really a matter of a lot of people
paying to save the lives of a few selfish homeowners. So maybe
we drag our feet a little. And then the signs come down. You
can ride along the 1length, and you wouldn't see one sign
saying, "Private Property. No'Trespassihg.T Then the, wall is
repaired and then they go up again, as I understand it. The
last time I drove down there, the signs were up again.

Now, I will end with a little speculation. It is has
been my experience in a 1long 1life that where people feel
they're being ripped off, they resent it. And their resentment
. comes out in little ways. And of course you remember Simon and
‘Garfunkel, "The words of the prophets are written on the subway
walls and tenement halls." I think if people did not feel so
ripped off on these beaches, it would be visible in less
litter, less beer cans, I think people would take care of a
valuable resource that they felt was open to them. i

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Dorothy lives in Neptune, and
Neptune has a beach, and it's called Ocean Grove. '

MS. ARGYROS: Yes.

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What are the fees in Ocean Grove?

"MS. ARGYROS: I really don't know. I haven't used the
beach in years.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You don't go to——

MS. ARGYROS: I understand Ocean Grove is about $30 a
season.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: - 8ix fifty daily.  (varying
amounts can be heard from members of audience) '
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MS. ARGYROS: I don't even try to go on the beach any
more.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: We'll 1look it up. Thank you,
Dorothy., We appreciate your test;imony. The next person I'd
like to hear from is Eva Kesselman. Eva?

EVA KESSELMAN: Hello. I'm Eva Kesselman, and I'm
a relatively new resident. My husband and I are relatively new
to the shore. Nobody forced us to come here. We chose this
place because it's so lovely. Many people seem to think so,
despite thg so-called “h'igh fees" and 1little access, because
how else would we get 70,000 people to Belmar on a warm day?
That happens to be a fact. If it was so expensive "and
inaccessible, they couldn't possibly be here. |, -

, ‘To my knowledge, from what I have seen up and -down the
shore, there 1is not one other town that has as many clean
bathrooms as Belmar has, and that is important, and it costs
money. It is not free. I realize everybody would 1like a
freebie, and so would I, but it is not possible. That's about
all I have to say. S | » : N ‘

' - One more 'thing. " This so-called mythical family .of =
four who pays a fortune. People don't realize up to 14, and
probably many sneak on that are 16, are free. This family of
four is a family of two. If another family joins them and
someone picks up the bill, that's there business.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you.

MS. KESSELMAN: That's it? Okay. _

, ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It's all right, Ms. Kesselman.
- Go ahead. . ’
- ' MS. KESSELMAN: Okay. Well, this is really about all
I have to say. This beach is well kept. There's .a tremendous
amount of litter here on a Saturday night. Yet you come Sunday
morning, somehow the elves have been at work in the middle of
the night, and it's clean. And I don't think anybody here
wants to work for nothing, and neither do these people who pick
up the litter. Thank you. |
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Very nice, Eva. As a result of
the last hearing in Long Branch, the biggest complaint in that
municipality wasn't water quality, wasn't beach fees. The
biggest complaint wasvlitter_on the beaches. And as a result
of that meeting we introduced a bill last week -- the members
of this Committee and myself -— that would increase the fines
for littering on the beaches up. to $500, and the proceeds of
the fines would be kept by the mun1c1pa11ty to defray their
costs in litter cleanup.

" Barbara Hoelle? I'm sorry. I didn't pronounce it
correctly. If you'll read your name and address into the
record please. | ‘
"BARBARA L. HOEULLE: I'm Barbara Hoelle, and I
live in Wanamassa. | |

. Probably 18 years ago or so, I used to go to a free
beach in Asbury Park and just sit for an hour and sun myself
and 'go home. There's no place I can do thatvany more. I'm not
a person who can stay on the beach all day. I can't afford to
pay flve or eight  dollars to s1t on ‘the beach. There's no
place to go any more. . o _

Mr. Palaia addressed a survey that was done and said
that many many people feel that the beach fees are not
exorbitant. But they were all asked of people who were on the
beach. o - . |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, it wasn't. . Barbara, it was
done on the boardwalk, not on th/e/' beach. These people were
just walking up and down the beach front.

MS. HOELLE: Okay, but how about the people who just
don't come to the boardwalk any more. I mean, they stay away
because they can't afford 25 cents a half hour to park the
car. And they don't go to the boardwalk because they want to
be on the beach. They can't afford the beach. I mean, we all
know there are a lot of people who just don't go to the beach
any more. I really think the best thing to do would be to have
the State operate the beaches. That's all I have.
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ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Thank you, Barbara.

- =+ ASSEMBLYMAN _:VILLANE:.~ Thank ! -you;:! Barbara:~~ Matthew
Bocchine? ¢ MattPsn @iveaiyour gname vandwaddress=for the:.recatd
pleaser Mattiizini. was Littery ou ihé pRaches, Ana anos romnte
MATTHEW BOCCHTINO: Matthew Bocchino. I live at
10 Mt. Vernon Court in Livingston, but I have been coming down
to Belmar for the entire summer for approximately 40 years.

I don't think that there's anyone that would be object
to a cap being put on for the beach to help with the financing
- of ‘the beaches. However, I think the point needs to be made
that the excessiveness of the fees in Belmar, one of the
specific purposes was reducing the amount of people that came
down; because about three or four years ago it got so crowded,
that the attempt to reduce the crowds was to raise the fees to
such a point.that they couldn't come down.

Unfortunately also, there was an underlying factor of
trying to reduce the minority population that was coming down
to the beaches on the fourteenth and fifteenth. A 1lot of
_people are going to deny this, but I work in Orange 'I'm a
‘ pr1n01pa1 in Orange " A lot of my parents and kids used to come
down here. They cannot afford to come down simply because the
fees are much too high. They would be able to pay a much more |
reasonable fee than the way it is now. I think the concept of
a cap would be beneficial to all the residents. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:  Thank you wvery much, Matt. The
next person is Mrs. Elizal_;eth Maas, M-A-A-S. Elizabeth? .
ELIZABETH J. M AAS: I'm a senior. I live in
Lakewood in New Jersey. (audience informs witness they can't
hear her) | | 4 _ |

ASSEMBLYMAN. VILLANE: Right into the microphone.
That's good. '

MS. MAAS: I have bathed at the shore for over 50
years, and I've seen the deterioration in the water and also in
the services. Beach fees are too high, meter fees are too
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high. Twenty five cents an hour would be adequate, especially
along your.-heach front:herei==:1 had-semeone. just:'relate that:ito
me:::this~moraingTas ‘she: was: goingcomrtherbeachs = flaudience cletst
witness know they can't hear her) You can't hear me?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: - You've got to-go- rlght into the
mike. Hold it up real close to your face.

MS. MAAS: Okay. Clean beaches are not the total
picture. Quality of water is also a very big factor. People
go to the beaches to go into the ocean. As a shore resident
for over 50 years, I've seen the deterioration of the quality
of the water. §8ilt is something that most people aren't aware
of. It floats, very light tiny particles as the waves breaks.
It's silt. Garbage and sewage? I found raw sewage at the
water's edge at Seaside Park, whe.re I bathe occasionally. 1I.
‘have just continually over the years backed south as far as I
can, Asbury Park, Avon, way down now. The filth is pushing
down as it normally does. ' .

It is not only Sandy Hook that is the problem. It is
the local overflows also. And I'm concerned, as this. Asbury
‘Park Press article states,’about this wall between Belmar and
"Spring Lake that covers a 2 million gallon a day sewage pipe
beneath the wall. Why is 2 billion gallons of raw sewage right
at the beach front? Because it goes in the ocean, that's why .
And walking the Spring Lake beaches in the evening, I have had
to leave several times because of the stench at night blown in
from the ocean. It's a disgrace, and it's horrible. I give
up. Therefore I would recommend that the State take over the
beaches. | | _

ASSEMBLYMAN . SINGER: - Through the Chair, Doc. I just
want to make one clarity of my concerns, to share with the
public that's here. Through the efforts of Doc Villane, and I
see Senator Pallone —— I don't know if he's still here or not
—— but there has been a continual push to find a permanent
funding source for shore protection, so that our beaches will
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not lapse in, and part of the water quality problems you're
talking -about:-will be taken care..of...We have:been-unable:to;
on- the: legislativeslevel ::because; of: the: blacking icf:many North
Jersey: legislators,.- beén--able : to'~find 'a ~permanént funding
source for shore protec¢tionT And if it wasn't for Doc Villane
this year putting some $40 million in the budget, you would not
see any money. So a major concern we have, and a major problem
we have 1is, the water quality, shore protection, and finding
the money statewide to do that. And it seems we come to doing '
it, and éayinq to everyone that the water quality is a
statewide problem -- the State should in its entirety pay for
it —— North Jersey doesn't want to hear that. I think that's
an important thing to undey:stand.

Everyohe who wants the beaches-— They talk about the
State taking it over, but the State does not want to pay the
tab of retaining our beaches the way they have to be. And if.
the State would wake up to that factor and understand that it's
a statewide problem to take care of our beaches, maybe a lot of
these problems would be solved themselves. .

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: The next speaker is Mildred D a
Day from the Belmar Woman's Club. Mrs Day"
UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER CF AUDIENCE: She left. :
_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: The next person is Aaron Smith.
Mr. Smith? '
AARON S M I TH: My name is Aaron Smith. I live at
Birdsall Road in the Farmingdale section of Howell Township.
I've lived in this area for over 50 years, and I've watched the
water quality in this area deteriorate over all these years.
I'm speaking as a long time fisherman and a beach bum.

Much of our tax dollars go towards the construction
and maintenance of the sea walls and the jetties that you see
out there, that protect our beaches. If it wasn't for those
jetties and the sea walls we wouldn't have the beautiful wide
beach that we have out there. These were put up with public
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funds, and yet we again have to pay .to utilize these .same
beaches;. «.This is'double -taxation: :We'rerpaying  to protedt the
beaches landstxreate ‘the- beachesitby paying iforithe: s€a: waklsirand
the: jetties; <and-then we-have“fo pay to'go on the:beaches ‘again.:

In many areas you can't even utilize the beaches, the
sea walls, or the jetties, due to a lack of parking and/or a
proliferation of “No Trespassing” signs - speaking
specifically of Monmouth Beach, and especially most of Sea
Bright. Many of the areas I used to walk and fish ‘are now
blocked by fences and malls. I wish Mr. Palaia was here
because of the fences that are up -- Pallone rather - because
of the fences that are up in Long Branch

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: In Long Branch, yeah. Part of
this bill would provide that those fences must be taken down to
allow free access north and south along the beaches.

MR. SMITH: Tremendous, because I walked that area for
"a lot of years, fishing. Over the years it seems that as the
access becomes more difficult and expensive, the water quality
and. the flshmg ‘seem to deterlorate I'm sure the sw1mmers-
find the same 51tuat10n  Some of the th1ngs that are helpful
are: More recycling of refuse and a deposit bottle bill, which
would cut down the waste stream that seems to find its way into
our ocean; more and better controls of the dumping of garbage
from ships, including our own U.S. Navy -- which shocked me
. that they dump, I mean, that blew my mind -- even the small
boats. We have to have better control of the off-loading of
refuse at the Great Kills Landfill, and we have to stop dumping.
of sewage sludge and industrial waste. In short, we must stop
using our ocean as a dump. .

I have stopped purchasing any duPont products, period,
since I. find out that they are our 1last industrial ocean
polluter in this area. I'm sure that they won't miss my
business, my little two rolls of string line that I used to buy
"every year I don't buy any more. That won't hurt them too
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bad. But if enough people joined me, we might have a little
impact::on duPont:and:wdke:them up.. o ro.poyring (o soerant Toe
Lsaches i.'ﬁtﬂeverang“my“smfee dandv aweny for -anwalls a]son.g: the
béach - ‘at “Manasquan-=~tor= celebriate:=¥Big € Dayrho-=a:Manasguan:s
hundredth birthday. All evening long._I heard comments from the
people about the garbage in the ocean that they had ‘all day.
One woman said she came out of the water with plastic streaked
around her legs. I mean this is a sad éommentary on life at
the Jersey shore. '

The point I'm trying to make with all this is, we're
getting less quality for a higher price, and I don't think it's
fair. , ‘ - |

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Thank you, Aaron.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Smith.
The next one to telst'ify is T.F. Keating from Trenton, New
Jersey. Mr. Keating? Take your time, take your time.-

While Mr. Keating is getting ready, for all of you

that have filled out that-questionnaire, would you be sure and
hand it in to ‘the Staff so we can . include that as part of our
repo'rE. " The reports will be available when the final analysis
of this taped testimony is done. Mr. Keating?
THOMAS F. KEATING, SR.: Mr. Chairman, I want
to thank you for allowing me to speak today, and the other
members of the Committee. <(audience informs witness they can't
hear him) -
| ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Right into the front of it.
(witness adjusts microphone) That's it.

MR. KREATING: I would like to thank the Chairman for
allowing me to speak here today. - First of all I want to say
that I am 100% against beach fees, period. Beach fees, as far
as I'm concerned, remind me of the Boston Tea Party, taxation
without representation. |
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The Governor's Bureau of Tourism every year a week in
May they:have. .a.tourism -weeki -The Governor speaks in front of
the State.:Houses;—: and::;they =make a big torde over. dtuiy The
Governorrmdde:the: statementissrI+didn't; héar: it this fear::but: 'L
heard it last year —— made the statement that tourism in the
State of New Jersey is an $8 billion business, and 85% is at
the Jersey shores. The millions of dollars that the Federal
government has poured into these beaches, and the millions of
dollars over the ‘'years that the State of New Jersey has poured
into these beaches to subsidize them, on top of the referendum

that they had on the ballot three years ago —— the $50 million—-
o ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: My bill.

MR. KEATING: Fifty million dollars, plus subsidizing
by the State and the Federal government. Three years ago- there
was a. storm and it hit Monmouth County. 'The Governor and his
entourage make a television tour of the beaches on a Saturday,
‘and they come up with a  total of $3 million in damages --
Sunday papers in my town, two papers. Monday morning there's a
plece in the paper by the Chalrman ~of the Freeholder Board of
Monmouth County He estlmates '$18 million worth of damage '
And I'm happy to say that the Federal government didn't give
‘Monmouth County one red cent, for there was no property damage,
there was no loss of life. | ‘

In October of -every year, the Bureau of Tourism puts a
list out of what each municipality makes in beach fees in any
giVen year. Three or four years ago, the State of New Jersey
gave Ocean City over $5 million for beach erosion, in the
- middle of the summer, in the middle of the season. And all the
people down there .were complaining about the hoses and the
equipment all over the beach. When the Bureau of Tourism put
the list out of who made what for that year, Ocean City took in
$998,000 on beach fees. )
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Now the beach fee law, I think it came out in 1955 —-
and I'myhappy to isay:that._Iihavénitipaid::foruacvbeach:feexin 25
yéars;-and té-the.day:I die:l wonst buy ienother:beach fee.. But
the municipality.-that-I-go to, ‘I go on the beach everyday,'if L
wear walking shorts. This happened 25 years ago. I didn't
feel well this day. I didn't want to go in the water. I said
to my dear wife, "I'm going to go up on the beach in my shorts
until a lifequard comes on. When the lifeguard comes on you've
got to have the beach badge. 1I'll sit there read my book, 10
o'clock when' the guard comes on I'll come back home." I got
eng}:ossed in the book, and it was past 10 o'clock, and all of a
sudden the beach girl is checking the beach badges sand she
walks up to me and she said, "Your beach badge, sir. Oh, you
don't need a beach badge sir. You don't have a swimming suit
on." And it dawned on me. They're not charging me to sit to
go on the beach. They're charging me to swim in the ocean,
whlch they don't own. '

I would 1like to address omne questlon to the Public
Advocate if I may, if he's still here _ S

_ ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Yes, he is.. He's here.
, ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: If vyou'll just make your
statement. He'll get back to you. '

MR. KEATING: Sir, as I understand it, the New Jersey
Supreme Court came out with a ruling that all beaches would be
free —-— not free, but access to all beaches. There is a
municipality -— I can't remember the name of the municipality\
—— which had a sea wall, and shortly after that decision came -
out the State of New Jersey said, "Take the wall down or we'll
tear it down." Did that municipality ever take that wall down?

' ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It's really difficult to

answer. There's a number of cases before the State where walls
have been put up at the end of streets. There's a sea wall in
Sea Bright that the State built on private property. If you
could better locate that, and if you could give it to us in
writing--
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MR. KEATING: Deal. I believe it was Deal.
znzx i "ASSEMBLYMAN:: VILLANE:~~"Do yow=want- him te-.answer _that
now; sor xda: you twantidyim tasget ‘back to:yom:with: aiparticurar—=usz
Lot uMRoa (KEATING: :I<just. wangs him ite sayoyesrerrmos. iDid
they take it down? '
SHAPIRO: (from audience) It was a fence.

« KEATING: A fence? ’

SHAPIRO: Right.

KEATING: Did they take it down?

SHAPIRO: No. : . |
KEATING: Then I say to you sir, as the public
defender, that you start charges against the Attorney General
of the State of New Jersey, who has taken an oath to defend the
laws of the State of New Jersey, and he isn't doing it. What
is the hold up on getting that fence down? .

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: <Okay, Mr. Keatinq, I don't want
to get into a debate dialogue with the members here, but if
you'll continue your testimony--

MR. KEATING:. I'm finished, sir. -

" ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Okay, you are? I want to thank
you, Mr. Keating, but I'd like to just point out a coﬁple of
minor inaccuracies in some of the things that you've said.

First of all, the $50 million Shore Protection Bond
Act, of which I was the sponsor, requires that every
municipality that gets aid from the State for shore prot"ection,
must duplicai;e’ tha_t money with half the costs. So towns like
Belmar and Bradley Beach, that receive a million dollars for
shore protection, must in turn go out to bond their half of the
project, and in turn they put that responsibility on their
taxpayers to provide shore protection. That's part of the
requirements of the $50 million bond act, and it also requires
that municipalifies provide public access.

MR. KEATING: Are you saying that any millions of
dollars that they would get out of that, they have to pay back
to the State? '

ABRERAR
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: They match it.
ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: They have to match it or they
don't get it. =
. MR. KEATING: But there 1is millions of dollars of
' State money—- '
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Yes.

MR. KEATING: --that are subsidizing these beaches?
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Half of it is from the—
MR. KEATING: 'So there's taxation without

representation, period. 1Is it or not?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: It isn't, and I don't really——

MR. KEATING: 1It's Federal money——

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, no, no.

MR. KEATING: -—and it's State money. Not the $50
million, isn't Federal money. But the $50 million is State
money. A : . _ |
ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And the other portion that the
‘town puts up is local money. The local taxpayers pay for it.

_ - MR. KEATING: I agree w1th you, I agree with you. But
aren't ‘you gettlng State money for noth1ng°' ‘Right? Taxafibn
without representation, period. _ ‘ _
A ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: Can we have the microphone for a
minute? (public address system mlcrophone is passed to
Assemblyman Singer) Thank you. Can I make a statement. I
won't get into a debate. I promise, Mr. Chairman. I just want

to maké a statement as a shore legislatér, and ‘someone who has
I think some things that are important for the public to
understand. - o

Yes, tourism is an $11 billion industry in the State
- of New Jersey. (inaudible comment from audience) It's an #$11
billion industry, and in Ocean COunty it's the number one
industry. The shore legislators, as well as the Tourism
Committee, has tried for years to have the State determine what
share of sales tax and everything else, the shore communities
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pay in, and what percentage we dget back. I would only hope
that the public. .wéuld:. read, evéry  time. that ~Trenton;, ~Newarks;:
Jersey-:City;,. Hoboken, has special legislation passed to send
them $4 million, $3' million, '$8:million: :’ I~think If: 'werever
analyzed the amount of monies spent in the shore communities by
the State, compared to what they spend in the rest of the
State, you'll see that we are continually shortchanged, and
that includes our roadways. Take a look at the fact that in
Ocean County Route 9, Route 37, Route 88, 195 was never
completed, and everything else we talk about, and take a look
at what they spend in North Jersey. You'll start to understand
some of the problems we face. '
' MR. KEATING: Sir, can I say one thing?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, no, no.

MR. KEATING: One thing?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No, Mr. Keating. We have othef‘
people that want to be heard. :

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: (speaking from
~audience) How much of it 1is discrimination? How much?
AnybodY?--TheSé people'right’here,~how7mﬁchvis’dﬁsérimination
in these beach fees? o

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: May I--—

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: I can afford to get

on the beaches-- = (inaudible) How much of it is
discrimination? . Can you answer? -(inaudible) It's all
discrimination. ' C

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I'd like to hear from Arlene
Nash. : ‘ . :
UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: I've said my piece.
Just think about it. ' ' : '

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Ms. Nash?
ARLENE NASH: I'mArlene Nash from Trenton, that much
maligned place where all you gentlemen hold court. ' '
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In 1listening to people today, I seem to get the
feeling:-asi:a tourist :and as. only. a summertime resident .—-- and
net zevenievery:summer === that- 'what:-yow.would reallty like--us
tourists toido-:is fto wséndca. check®and~not Bhowiaip.if New, ~I*m
. not going to do that. T
' I want to tell you, I'm in Ocean Grove this summer,
and I think the fees are excessive. It's $45 for a season. I
have a family of five and they are not under 14. It costs me
$225 and I think that's really outrageous. ©Now, I'm not
against beach fees. I think they have to relate to the costs.
I think you gentlemen, and the administration of all the
communities, have an obligation to show what that relation is
to make it fair. |

I think the State should be a participant in
supporting the beaches. I mean, I pay taxes for roads up in
Livingston, and I pay for taxes for schools in Camden. I feel
that's an impbrtant obligation of «citizens, and perhaps
northern and central New JerseYans haven't done their job in
communicating to their own legislators, as opposed to these
-gentlémen ‘who - hear all  the '_time " 'I'm sure from their
constituents. And perhaps that's something we ‘can do as
part-time residents, or summer residents, is talk to our own
legislators if we think that the fees are excessive, that the
State should participate and should help communities on a
flexible basis where it's necessary and where it's more
compacted; " New Jersey is a very very dense state, and it's a
small enough state so that everybody can get to the beaches,
and they do.

. I really don't have any other comments, except for one
thing. I think Ocean Grove is a delightful community. The
beaches are delightful. The water has been great. And I'm
willing to pay, up to a point. I don't think it's fair for
such excessive fees to be put on not only the part-time
residents, but the full-time residents.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank  you, Arlene. . It's
interesting - to:note =tHat: the!:-beaches =are: popularzand not
popularsn weéthr-haediy~any-differentiation ofiuthe: sand: and:=the
waters== Asbury iPark for: instance, ~lLas‘some ~of: the’ finest:
beaches in Monmouth County. Their beach fees are two and three
dollars. And hardly anybody uses those beaches. You can ride
up there now and park on Ocean Avenue. In Belmar, with the
same size beaches, and with the same water, have a tremendous
number of people that go to them. Ocean Grove, for instance,
where you go, is really not that crowded. (laughter)

MS. NASH: Well, I used to go down to Long Beach
Island, so it's all flexible. I'm a native Callfornlan,
.although ‘I've lived most of my adult life in New Jersey. It
was hard getting used to the fact that you had to come and pay
for beaches, even then when it was cheap. But I went down to
‘the shore, we went all the way up to Deal, and I was really
appalled at the state of most of those beaches. The eraosion is
incredible, and the beaches didn't look clean. And somebody

- . walking on the boardwalk in one of those 11ttle communltles .

’sald "Well we don t really swim in the ocean. We really go to
the pool." It's a patrimony that belongs to everybody, not
even just the people in New Jersey, but the people on the whole
east coast. And it's a patrimony we really must protect.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Good. Thank you very much.

MS. NASH: And it's a State responsibility——

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You're right.

MS. NASH: --together with municipalities.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And you know, the sad thing
about the condition of the beaches and the 1litter and ‘the
pollution, 1is that it didn't come from anybody but people;
that's the crime of it. Th_esé natural resources aren't getting
polluted by itself. Somebody flushes their toilet, and
somebody dumps their 1lunch, and somebody 1leaves their
containers on the beaches, and then municipalities like this
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and other municipalities have the responsibility to- clean it
up:~We-all should pitch~inm and:doi:a-littlecmore work.: o3 ot
wopular; BEdhlikede hear friom:Rosamie cAngeloras dJarcandtdmake
that out.™=Would "you teil us:swhat" your:: name:= and.address:ns,
please? S
ROSANNE ANGELORA: I'm Rosanne Angelora. 1I'd
like to speak as——

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Your address please, Rosanne?

MS. ANGELORA: Five hundred Ocean Ave, adjacent to
this building as a matter of fact.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Belmar?

MS. ANGELORA: Belmar. I'm speaking out as a business
owner. (éudience complains that they can't hear witness)

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Right into the mike. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: - Speak a little louder into the
mike. \

MS. ANGELORA: Okay. We went into this business three
years ago. No complalnts in 1985. As of '86, once the beach
adm1ss1ons did go. -up, the volume has been cut v1rtua11y in
" half. When we orlglnally got into the bu51ness, we thought our
only worry would be the weather conditions. . Unfortunately,
that worry is now ‘at the bottom of our list since last year.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: What's the nature of your
business, Rosanne? I don't know.

- MS. ANGELORA: The food concession right next door. I
don't know who it was before, as far as reading off the polls
saying that the $8 and $5 during the week —— which is now $4 —
is fair, I don't know who you were polling, but I can take a
poll during the course of the season right next door as far as
complaints we have gotten. As far as regular customers from
‘85, they‘aré gone. For the first time wvisitors to Belmar,
that's the first and the last time you'll be seeing them.
Complaints is all I get during the course of the season. Like
I said, the volume has been cut virtually in half, more so this
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season. Today is a perfect example. Fairly nice beach day,
take a.look outside, .come next.door. : :fuie oo wETio

For.. the« $8; : the complaints:<T shear:-from: tha ‘publie
béing,mumbét:::drie y~mo r showers -on:~thebeach:: They =tdok:zthdse
off as of '85. The water fountains cannot provide the water.
The story, I understand, from last year was a water shortage.
My water is running. Now I'm getting the feedback as to why I
charge these people for water. 1It's just not fair. For $8 for
a Satﬁrday or Sunday, these people should be treated like kings
and queens as far as I'm concerned, and they're not. They're
not at all. Again, no showers, no water.

_ Lifeguards, last year -— I could give you dates if I
had my book with me -- during the course of the week,
lifeguards, no show. Just no show on a Wednesday or Thursday.
For what reason I don't know. Thereby, I'm losing business.
These people are 51tt1ng down at Third Avenue, or down at
Seventh or Eighth where a’ lifeguard is present. . Lifeguards
also —— I understand'they're all college students -- are. gone
~as of the last weekend in August, prlor to .what used to be the'
end of the season, the grand finale for the bus1ness owners

The parklng, from 25 to 50 cents an hour, is
outrageous. Again, these people are being charged $8, and for
what, dirty water last year. Last year was very interesting as
a matter of fact. I understand there were dead sheep_heads in
plastic bags coming ashore. Approximately two weeks ago, dead
fish heads coming ashore. This is what these people are paying
$8 for? ,

Now again, take a 1look outside. It's a beautiful
beach day. What's out there? These people are gone.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE:  Rosanne, do you lease the
concession from this municipality?

MS. ANGELORA: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: And is it a three-year lease or
a one-year lease or—-— '
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MS. ANGELORA: Four-year lease.

- ASSEMBLYMAN VILEANE: ' Four-year lease? -

MS: ANGELORA: iFeur-yeafzlease.. woar {rom ihe fibiis
sy~ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: - Okay.:~Thank you very much. —-And
your home is where, Rosanne? You're from Belmar or—

MS. ANGELORA: No, no, no. I'm from out-of-town.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Out-of-town. Thank you very
much. Mr. Richard J. Toth. Mr. Toth? '
RICHARD J. T OT H: My name is Rich Toth. I'm from
North Brunswick, New Jersey. I didn't .know you were having
this today. I just happened by because I've coming down here
for like, about ten years. And I don't really feel the beach
fees are high. I feel alone, because I feel considering the
alternative forms of entertainment available, I don't really
protest that. ' N

As far as the local government-- I'd rather have a
local govefnment like Belmar controlling the beaches, because I
feel they would do a better job than the State, because the
_ pe_opie locally would keep the pressure on them to maintain it.
' The problem is, if the State tak’es it over, the problem with
the State handling it is they might get other priorities at
other times. Like they might start concentrating on other
things, while for the people down here this is very important.

, I was outraged by the Public Advo'cat'e's comment that
he wants to reimburse the ‘lawyers if, you know, like somebody
wants to sue the town. I think this is outrageous,-” because why
should people have to pay for the lawyers? I mean, if I don't
like something and I want to protest something, I'll pick up
the cost myself. I don‘t feel the public should bear that. I
think that's totally outrageous. And that's all I have to say.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Good, Rich. Very good.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Rich, one of the things that,
when it was proposed that the State take over the beaches, I
envisioned every beach and every lifeguard, and everybody who
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picks up trash, to be a civil servant with bumping rights with
tenure innTthe™job;” which*would—berkind!rofi:ra tough thing to
administe#s. Braditienaliyurivihink:the towns along the Jersey
shore have--provided %ﬁﬁh&storidally ==u.goodbeaches:and safe
conditions, and up until recently, I think very reasonable and
moderate fees. And we now are addressing those problems. I
don't think that the State should take over the beaches either,
and they can't do it unless the Legislature agrees, and I don't
think there's a sentiment in the Legislature to do that. Thank
you. B . '

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Thanks, Richard.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Richard. Mr. John
- Sharrock or Shanrock? John would you jusf tell us your names

and address for the record? | | N

JOHN SHARROCK: Which microphone are we using?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That one. If you'll hold it
close to you. , : : :
MR. SHARROCK: My name is John Sharrock. I reside in
'Belmar on Sixth Avenue. - - C o 4
I'm really happy for this obportunity' to'fspeak;
. possibly even speaking later. I think in analyzing what a lot
of these people have said, I think possibly they missed the
point. I think we talk about beach access, and I'd like to
talk about municipality beach access. When the people say,
"You're charging us an awful lot to go on the beach that God .
made," I agree it should be free, but I believe they have to
pay for the maintenance of the beach. And I think the
maintenance runs somewhere around $8, in this town anyway.

I think if we digress for a minute and see exactly

‘what we're paying for-- I know one of the Assemblymen
mentioned before that possibly we can't even estimate what we
pay. Everybody knows of our direct costs, such as our

lifeguards, and our garbage cleanup men, our ticket takers, and
things like that. And I think what they are talking about when
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they're supporting this thing on $2, they don't realize they're
not .talking raboutthe:same beach: - ~Fhe: -beach: thatr:you: walk-onte

for::$8 ;- you wilhmot drave forl $2uiuk wie towns alond the Jersey
== ERz=I- heard: ! someone__ sayy, :ctlivreallyarenijoy:walking the'
boardwalk." I don't know if they realize that there may not be

a boardwalk. In relation to the storm damage and so forth,
which we are hit with pretty heavily on certain years, the
State had indicated that they won't be able to support us on
repairing them. I know -there's some Federal monies, " but
they're pretty hard to get a hold of, and maybe you wouldn't.
So when the town is bringing in $2, they're not going to be
able to repair the boardwalk and they're going to have it take
it down. So the individual said, "I'm opposed to $8, but I
really enjoy walking the boardwalk," they're not going to be
walking that boardwalk. You're not going to be going visiting '
where you believe for $8 at 605 Third Avenue. You're going to
102 ‘Fourth Avenue. It's different, something completely
different than what we're talking about for $2 I don't think
people really reallze this. » ' , _

' They re gomg to pay $2 They're going' to sit on ‘a
beach that s probably going to have litter, because you can't’
do it with the lifequards. I wouldn't want to see ‘that. So
out of the $2 we're going to take the necessities, the
lifeguards, we're going to have to have someone to collect it,
and then we're going to have to take away the litter. Now, the
State is proposing $2; and we know that's Agoing “to encourage
more people, but we can't clean up the litter. We're going to
have a lot more litter, we're going to have a lot more police
problems, a lot more first aid problems, and things like that,
but we're not going to be able to support it.

They say, "You're charging too much.” The census that
was taken -- and I believe that you gentlemen are all in
possession of it -- I think it was in 1985 we did .a

comparison. We brought in $1.5 million, and it cost us $1.5
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‘mill.ion. Now, .if .you're going to .pay.us $2, the cost is going
to-be:. the same.*= You hawve -to:realize that!:we:have—a-variable .
income. Everybody.stated that -who stood up- here. '

They‘re blaming:the conditions of --:and we‘ré ‘talking
about variable. We're talking about 'dirty water. It stops
people from coming down. . They have that on the New York report
channels. People may not come. We have inferior weather;
rainy weather, people don't come. But you have to remember
that when we make the budget out eérlier in the year we must
employ the lifegquards. We can't s;ay‘to them "Gee, we can't pay
you today. It's not a nice day." We're not going to pay the
police that' patrol the beach today because, "We don't need
you." You have to give these people a job for the summer or
they're going to go someplace else, So you have a variable on
the income factor,' and you have a definite cost fixed factor.
Now we're going to go in the hole. ' | '

- And the point is this — and I think listening to the
representative from the State Advocate, he mentioned proposing
$2. Why doesn't he take it back, the State, and I think the
State has expérience on -that, and they're not. They don't want
to take it back because at $2 they know it's going to be a
losing propésition, and I think $4 or $5 can be a 1losing
proposition. So they don't want it back. People don't even
realize -- and I'm looking right out here now -- probably
you‘re not going to have a bathroom, because who is going to
pay for it at -that amount? The State doesn't want to take it.
They want us to take Iit-, and the bottom line is that the people
who live in this town are goirig to have ?ay‘ for it. ©No other
way around it. If we're going to give you the service, we're
going to pay for it. Now you can believe that the lifequards, .
sanitation, we'll have to send our police down, we're not going
to be able to have the income, we're going to have the costs,
and the people are going to have to pay. So as it's unfair to
anybody else coming down from New York, we.want those people on
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our beaches, we can't pay for them, and this town is going to
be here. ' '

I think it's really simple and it comes:down to, if it
costs us "X" amount of dollars, you've got to pay. It's sort
of like the advertisement for the oil thiﬁg, "You can pay me
now or you can pay me later." - There's not going to be a
boardwalk to enjoy. ' '

'_ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank  you, John. Mr. Richard
Leister? If you would just-give your name and address for the

transcript. S |
RICHARD -LEISTER: Myname is Richard Leister. I
live at 6 Allan Drive in North Arlington. I'm a summer

resident of Belmar, and have been coming down here for probably
about 40 years. i | q '

' Everything I was going to say has been mentioned
before, but I would like to address Mr. Shapiro. First of all
I would 1like -the panel to know that I am in favor of home
rule. I am in favor of fees for the beach. P

Mr. Shapiro said the public has a right. wa'maybe I

have. missed something, but I didn't hear him say the public
also has the responsibility. Now, he has a mythical family.
The 20th of July I believe Gloria Wright had mentioned was $40
for four; he mentioned $34 for four. I've seen families of
four, six, seven, and eight, get on the beach and I only count
two badges. It was $16, and that's $2 a head.
' As I said, I'm for the home rule, and I'm for—
(inaudible) Now, it hasn't been brought up here but we do have
a free beach at five d'c10ck, from five to ten. Now, I would
suggeét Mr. Shapiro get down here maybe on a weekend from five
to ten and see what's happening with the free beaches.. That's
all T have to say. |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you, Mr. Leister. If
there's anyone else who would like fo testify, we're rounding
up now —— we have two people left to testify — if you'll come
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up here and just £fill out the form so you can be included in
the transcript. Katherine Bounds? Ms. Bounds?
KA TH ERthNM<E:It B @H!N D SinlMy~mname- irs>rKatherine ‘Bourds &
I_live:.in River:Edge:iNew;: :Jersey;~dnd I-own~a::small "house -inm
South Belmar, a summer resident.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: They just raised your taxes
didn't they? Did your taxes go up?
‘ MS. BOUNDS: Taxes go up all over. Really the
comments made by Mr. Singer prompted me to even fill out the
"form. And just be way of backgrpund,' I am not a senior
citizens. I am not a wealthy because I own a summer house down
here. I grew up in Jefsey City. My childhood was spent on the
beaches of Long Branch. I 1live in Bergen County néw’,A and I
also, as you say, pay taxes down here. ' ,

' I really think I as an individual, and I think most
people, live or buy in a community where they are buying a life
'style, if you will; an ambience, a value system, that is
consistent with their own, and within their means. And this is A
what I have done. And not to belabor the poin-t., _it-'s true many
of the people here have’ expressed my feelings, I ‘think —- and
I'm a working mother, I'm not wealthy as I said before ——.
Belmar is the most cost-effective thing I've done. If I want
to go to Yosemite National Park, it's my understanding I have
to make a reservation two years in advance. God also made
that. God also made. my back yard, but that doesn't give a
right for anyone just to come and do as they please with it. I
really think this is a natural resource, the beaches that are
here, all around the United States, and I feel we should pay
the price to keep them the way we want them to be,- for all of
the public, not just for those who live there or visit for the
day. (

I have been following this in a very limited way. 1In
the last few years I know this is an issue with the Public
Advocate. So last year I took a trip down the coast of the
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United States. as far as Hilton Head Island in South Carolina.
The auterbanks of North:-Carolina;  the: beache€s"in Virginia, the
Beachest in#Séuth=Car&ling; fare “freé! -iz-what EimhreadingourBut
- I can- finally_go ‘te Nags Head; North - Carolinam:and nfind :ia
parking spot anywhere. The beach is free, but in effect it
costs you $100 a night to use that beach because you must stay
at a hotel or some other facility that you're paying for. _

Now to me, from North Jersey, if I come to Belmar for
the day three times in the summer, it's just worth my while to
be aware, plan ahead, and buy a badge. And I don't have to
deal with $8.00 on a weekend or $4.00 during the week, or
whatever. it is. And that's basically what I wanted to say.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: You know, I didn't want to get
into a debate atmosphere, but I'm curious -- and I'm going to
ask the question now because we're almost finished —— but I'm
curious why you picked out Belmar Beach to go to? ‘

MS. BOUNDS: Well, I 1lived in Long Branch in the
summer as I said when I was a chlld And at that time Asbury
Park was the place to go. I'm not an expert, but Long Branch I
understand in my mother's tlme was a wonderful place, and 1t -
just went down the tubes. Asbury Park when I was gr_ow1ng up
was a wonderful place. It went down the tubes. I'm sure there
are many socio-economic reasons for-- (inaudibile) " But I put’
Belmar even further south, and I don't want to see whatever
‘happened to those towns, happen here. And I have a feeling
that it's the pressures that are brought by the Public Advocate
picking out certaln little towns that will ultimately cause
their going Jjust down the tubes as well. That's Jjust my
th:_Lnk:_Lng. :

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Asbury Park and Long Branch have
" some of the finest beaches in New Jersey, as good as Belmar.
We don't have the number, particularly Asbury Park. Long
Branch is very crowded. They have good clean beaches and
lifequards, and they have very low fees. But Asbury Park is
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very much under utilized. I just wonder why people select

Belmar -over: Asbury,.over Bradley.Beach, over~—= .3 wisuinia, 7To0
LiLznTz MS-:-BOUNDS:w::iYou. feeil you:~have ther security:-in. this

town —--or~=:I7'do = as IThaverin:Riveér: Edge.zrIfi-Izmight say:‘one
more thing. I have a mother-in-law who is 85 years old, and
when she comes down here with me~- She used to go to Ocean

Grove with my father, and always enjoyed Asbury. I dropped
here there one day because she liked to walk the boardwalk for
old times sake, whatever. When I picked her up she was nearly
~a nervous wreck. She was frightened. She doesn't. get
frightened in Belmar. _ |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Very good. I'm interested in
" that. Thank you. '

| The last one who has asked to testify is Bob LaTorre.
Bob is the Director of Public Relations for Seaside Heights.
Mr. LaTorre?
ROBERT LaTORRE:: My name is Bob LaTorre. I'm.
Director of Public Relations for Seaside Heights. I used to
A,thlnk I was a good guy because 1 'wore a_white hat. But
) llstenlng to testlmony today I can belleve that perhaps I'm not
as good as- I thought.

Why are beaches in New. Jersey different than beaches

elsewhere? I hear that mentioned a lot. I've had the
privilege of being on a world cruise. 1I've been to 44 states
and five Canadian provinces, and because I live near a beach I
look at beaches a lot. New Jersey has the highest beach fees.
In fact, it ranks among the few states ‘that do have beach
fees. Shouldn't we change that? Perhaps we should. We also
have the lowest gasoline prices in the United States, and there
are some people who are lobbying heavily to change that. '
' So why are our beaches different? Simple answer: 127
miles of the finest, whitest, cleanest, safest sandy beaches in
the world, accessible to 70 million people within a three-hour
drive. 'And they come and they use it. We estimate something
around 30 million people every year come to use the beaches.
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As far as the cost 1is concerned, .it baffles me,
because:when’ I::look =at:ithe:fdct that:Wildwood has a free beach
and it ge¥sS.used™iand ftugetslused: heavilys= Atdanticy City :‘has
a-free beach, ‘and--on:-any ‘given~day:-you-can count the number -of
people on- it on one hand. That's a free beach, easily
accessible, public transportation, outlying parking at very low
cost, nobody on the beach. In Seaside Heights we charge $2.00
on weekdays -— for any of you who are here, $2.00 on weekdays
-—— and $3.50 on weekends, and it's only a short drive from
here. We manage to cram with a shoehorn sometimes as many .as
50,000 people on less than one mile of beach.

I had a visitor from the National Parks Serv1ce, the
D1rector of Economic Planning. He had never seen a New Jersey
beach, and I brought him to Seaside on a hot August day. He
looked out over that mile of beach and he said, "I've been in.
recreation all of my life, that's the highest most densely used
piece of recreational facility I've ever seen in my life." We
" charge $2.00 a day. We charge $3.00 on weekends.

_ . We remove every day a ton of litter from the beach, a
ton. In 75 years of our history there has never been a
drowning while lifeguards were on duty. What is it that we ask .
the public to pay for? ' That's what we ask them to pay for, the
cleanest, safest, beaches in the world. Who should pay for
that? Should the person who goes to a North Jersey lake pay
that fee? I really don't think so. I think it ought to be the
pérson who comes and walks on the beach.

| Until 1954 there were no beach fees 1in Seaside
Heights, and when it was proposed there was practically a
revolution in the town. Nobody wanted a beach fee. As late as
last year, it was proposed that all beach fees be dropped and
the cost of maintaining the beach be distributed over all the
businesses that earn their income along the beach. Now you and
I know what would happen if we did that. 1Instead of paying
~$2.00 at the gate, you'd pay for the beach when you bought a
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hot dog. You'd pay for it when you bought a soda. You'd pay
for it:when:you bought some .suntan:lotion.’/>-And:-as ~a ‘matter::of:
fact . ta Iat of speopl€d who mmeveri:set footi on' thei beachcwoulgd pay
for — it i-becauseniwe~ knowcithatv:allu.those:«cbusinesses:miwould
translate those costs down to .the public; because all the
wealth in this country comes from only one place, all of 'us.
Nobody else has got any money. These guys don't have any
money. Doc Villane, he proposes a $50 million bond issue,
that's your money not his. He doesn’'t have some machine ‘in
Trenton that he makes it with. .
| ~ What am I worried about? I know each of these
gentlemeri personally. I know where their hearts are. I know
where their minds are. They are the most honest, dedicated,
sincere bunch I've ever had the. privilege of working with.
They're not the ones I worry about. I worry about the fact
that we already have a lot.of God given natural wonders in this
State. New Jersey, the fifth smallest. 'state in the nation, has
over 50 parks and forests. I want you to count that, 50 parks
' - and forests. They get visited by ‘about 60 million visitations
a yéar -— excuse men, 30 million visitations a year. Do you
know what the government gives the State parks and forests to
operate? Sixteen million dollars. That's}why Island Beach
State Park is going to have to knock out some of its fall
programs —--— because there isn't any money to run them. So I
worry that if we get the State any more deeply involved in the
operation of the beaches, will we get as short-changed as the
‘State parks are?

And speaking of State parks, the only beach on the
-Jersey shore that is totally inaccessible to 'anyone are the 20
or 30 miles of beach owned by you, the people of the State of
New Jersey; that includes 10 miles of beach at Island Beach
State Park and all of Brigantine Island. Every summer day when
it's hot they close Island Beach State Park at 9:30, and there
~are a lot of good reasons for it. I have a feeling, that if
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when all of our parking spaces were filled in Seaside Heights
we..closed: the:town,: the :National -Guard would be'there to:reopen
it..: . And ::if ~yowseloser~Belmar: when ail -of L:ithe,cOceanu Avemie
parking s'pa-ceé:*:were:—* filled, the+National .Guard-would:be here:tia:
-reopen the town. Be careful what we ask for. We may get it.
- And these three gentlemen and I have been on the same side of '
the table in an all-out war with some of the people who would
be given the responsibility to operate these beaches. And what
have we been at war for? To protect your rights as private
citizens. Be careful what we ask for. It may come about.
Remember, the State government you're asking to ‘take control of
‘the beaches are the same guys who give you the Motor Vehicle
Department. | |

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you very much, Bob. And
do not try to steal any of the customers from Belmar for your
town. ‘ | | '

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: You won't get out alive.

MR. LaTORRE: I get paid by the taxpayers in Seaside.

_ ~ ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Is there anyone else? (no
‘response)  We have some closing statements from these gentlemen
who have given up their day today. Mr. Palaia? :

ASSEMBLYMAN PALAIA: Thani{ ‘you, Doc. Mr. Chairman,
ladies and gentlemen: As you can readily see today, th_is is
.truly bringing government to the people.’ ~And isn't it great to
‘be able to see your 1legislators working here on a Saturday
morning to hear what you have to Say. It would have been easy
to hold it in Trenton, but how many of you really could have
made it there? And that's the idea behind these hearings.
We're in Long Branch, we're in Belmar now, we're going to be
down in Ocean County shortly, and on down to Cape May to get
the feeling of the people further south. ‘

' I'd like to pay tribute to Mr. Shapiro. You may not
agree w1th what he said, but that gentleman stayed here the
entire time. He stayed and he listened. And that is nice.
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Too many times people come  in,. have their s.ay., then they go out
and -they:® get: their playi:iand::theylreé :gomne. ! . And::that's:-not
fair, ~because ryou :-hear- from: everybody!_;rlghtv to- the=zvery..end.:
But ‘Mr.” Shapiro,-I-want: to’ congratulate you: ~You're' doing-your:
job as a Public Advocate. Whether I agree with you or not, it
doesn't matter. You're doing your job. ' '

_ Mr. Sharrock, I just wanted to say you made some very
good points, because I wanted to say all along you get what you
pay for. 1If you're not going to pay, you're not going to have
‘clean beaches, you're not going to have the proper maintenance,
and you're not going to have everything else that goes along
with the enjoyable days that you have down here.

'And I just want to say to all of you, you have a great
town. Don't desert it. You've got good people here, and we're
going to continue to have a good town. We're going to have.
good beaches. And the 1legislation that Doc Villane has
proposed is in the right direction, and we're listening to what
you have to say. Thank you very much for coming out today.
- ASSEMBLYMAN SINGER: Thank you, Doc. I want to echo
'the comments "of my fellow Assemblyman Palaia. First of all I.
want to thank Mayor Hernandez and the Committee for allowing us
to come down here today. I certainly appreciate the public
tak:Lng the time out of their busy Saturdays to share their
views with us.

1 just want to share one last thought with you from my
perspectlve I heard some comments .concerning why people have
- high beach fees and keeping peopl/e off the beaches. Just so
you understand where I come  from—-— I'm Deputy Mayor of
Lakewood, which 1is the only urban aid city in all of Ocean .
Cbunty. We have beaches. I'm the only non shore community in
my district. All our beaches are free. I understand the
problems we face inland, and I understand the problems we face
on the shore.
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We have a'responsibility down here -— and a very big
responsibility +==:-tor 'providen access:=toiiour beaches.....ta our
handicapped.speaple Lmui thatiszvarGongerniiwe ‘avesz—-:=:and:«:to
everyone..-And:-I Have:not met =+ :at:least in my-district :I: have
not, and I'm sure here too - people that ‘are anti -people
coming down. That's really not true. I think we just want to
preserve a quality of life we all enjoy down here, and preserve
it not just for ourself but whoever comes to enjoy our summers.

So with that, I thank you for allowing me to be here
today. And again, I thank the'Mayor.

| ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: I want to just thank all of
you. The easiest thing to do is to sit in the audience, get to
say youf'piece, and leave. The gentlemanly and gentlewomanly
thing to do is to say what you've got to say, and listen to the
other people. I want to thank you all for staying to do that.

The Fair Beaches Act is my attempt to write a piece of
legislation to really provide adequéte access at a fair price,
and allow municipalities to recoup their true expenses in a

- fair way for operating the beaches for the public; and indeed

‘probably for the State of New Jersey, and as you saw today, for
some people from the State of Pennsylvania. We do provide
that, and I think you ought to be reimbursed in a fair way. I
don't think we ought to overcharge, and I don't think we ought
to make money on them, and thatfs what we're attempting to do
with this piece of legislation. .

I want to thank}py Committeé members who really have
taken a half a day out of their lives to spend it here with
you. We're going to put this together. This transcript will
be .available to  the public. We're going' to take the
information we've gotten from you, and we're going to try to
amend this bill to really make a good piece of legislation for
the State.
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There are a number of things happening in the State of
New Jersey. There's a Coastal - Commission that's going to be
formed that the Governor has talked about. ‘I'h?ére's a lot of
anti pollution legislé.tion. We're moving the sludge dump site
off of New Jersey 106 miles. We've closed down just about
every primary sewage treatment plant in the State of New
Jersey. We're improving water quality all the time. We're
testing water where we've never tested water before, twice and
three times a week. We're clamping down on the violators and
the polluters. New Jersey - is becoming a better and better
state, and it's becoming a better state because of the people
that live in it. ) | -

So I want to thank you on behalf of the . State
Legislature, and particularly on behalf of this Committee.
Thank you. ' ' |

(HEARING CONCLUDED)

69



- APPENDIX



STATEMENT OF
THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PUBLIC ADVOCATE
BEFORE THE ASSEMBLY SELECT

COMMITTEE ON TRAVEL AND TOURISH

JULY 27, 1987



MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF TﬁE ASSEMBLY SELECT COMMITTEE ON
TRAVEL AND TOURISM:

_ I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today
.to discués public access to our ocean beaches. It is an issue
that affects éll New Jersey citizens. |

The Department of the Public Advocate has,beeﬂ
investigating beach access issues since its.incéption in mid-
1974. The geneéis of our-involvément with this issue was
recognition of a fundamental factual and legal principle about
New Jersey's ocean beachés-rthat these beaches are a unique'and

irreplaceable reséurcé'that belong to all fhe people of this
 state. Moreover, although the beaches:may be geographibally
.llqca:gd adjacentlto certa;n Neﬁ Jetsey'municipalities, this_
 ‘cifcumstan§e doesvnot, under’wéll-established'leéal'prinéiplés,
.make the beaches the exclusive domain of these communities nor
does it permit‘thesé-munici?alities to exercise unbridled
discretion over beach fees or other matters relating to beach

access. Over'theiyears,'sevéral New Jersey municipalities have

-
s

imposed direct and indirect barriers to beach access that gravely
impair the publié's ability to enjoy the beaches and the ocean.
These burdens on access have inordinately fallen on the shoulders
of non-residents. it‘has been our strong belief that the
residents of all New Jersey municipalities are entitled under the

law to share in the enjoyment of these beaches.



In the past two years, we have recgived hundreds of
complaihts about various obstacles confronting New Jersey
citizens in their efforts to enjoy our beaches. These complaints
have cited lack of available parking, lack of restrooms and
changing facilities, and the scarcity of beach ﬁccess points.
Many have noted that non-residents are systematicaliy.dénied
seasonal passes to the Bay Head beach. Others héve focused on
excessive restrictions on beach area activities, police
harassment,'excgss beach fees and the need for reciprocal beach
‘badges. o | | -

| The most frequeﬁtly reported compliant has been.
excessive beach fees, especialiy in certain Monmouth County shore
towns. As_some.pgpple have éomplained, the cost.for a day at thg
"beach for a'famiiy,df‘four could exceed $40.00. In‘response to
these complaiﬁts, the Department of the Public Advocate conducted
an exhaustive study of the beach fee system in New Jersey
municipalities and throughout the rest of the couﬁtry. On May
19,.1987,1a 67-§age"report was issued detailing findings and
recommendations on present barriers to beach access at the New
" Jersey shore. I would like to discuss-bfiefly these findings and
recommendations, becaﬁse they provide a back-drop for our -
testimony todéy.

Initially, the Department reviewed the 1985 fees and
expenditures of the five municipalities charging the highest

daily fees--Avon, Bay Head, Belmar, Spring lLake and Sea Girt. We

e
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found it very troubling that these municipalities had not
developed a well-documented method of computing expenditures, but
rather based their costs on subjective estimates. Furthermore,
in a varietydof instances, the costs were not properly
attributable to beach front operations or were overstated. We
) found that daiiy users or "daytrippers," many of whom were
nonresidents, were disproportionately subsidizing the largely'
resident monthly and seasonal beach users. We concluded that the
.expenditures of these munisipalities were frequently inflated and
the beach fees ﬁere-exCessive. These five communities are now
targets of individual lawsuits. |

The method of setting beach fees by the mun1c1pallt1es ’
seems in _many respects to be more a functlon of attltude than of
accountlng. If beach fees are treated, as they are in several
municipalities--as fair game to offset every municipal
expenditure related, either directlyh indirectly'or even
peripherally, to the operation and maintenance of the beach or to
the influx of summer visitors-=then there will be no effective.
limit on appropriate costs or reasonable beach fees.

In contrast to the five municipalities, most other shore
towns bothﬂin‘and out ef New Jersey, hold a different philosophy
in determining what expenses will be passed along to users in the
form of beach fees. Their philosophy seems to be that beach fees
be kept affordable so that the ocean beaches remain available for

the general public. This approach, rather than a subjective
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effort at developing estimates to justify excessive and
restrictive beach fees,.is more compatible with the Public Trust
Doctrine and the statutory directives relating to beach fees.

‘ Our survey expanded to include nine other New Jersey
shore municipalities, all charging lower beach fees. Only three
_ of the nine towns claimed that beach fee revenues pay for all

beaeh-expenses. - Most ef the others understood that beach fee
revenues should pay for only direct beach operation costs,
_lifeguards, beach tag checkers, beach cleanlng, and not for the
myriad‘of indirect costs subsidized in the five communities,we
are sulng. | |

' our Department alsoc obtained fee information from every
state along the Atlantlc, Pacxflc and Gulf cOasts. . This study»
: unequlvocally establlshed that every coastal state in the country
has 1ower fees than New Jersey. In most states, there are no
fees charged fer'use'of the ocean beaches. Aall but a few of the
jurisdictions that do charge fees base them not en individuals
~ but on carloads--generally $2-$3. per vehicle.
Based on our investigation of complaints of excessive
beach fees and other ebstacles to the public right of access to
New Jersey's.teaches, we fermulated eight recommendations to
address these problems.' The touchstone of our recommendations is
the vindication of the paramount statewide policy, crystallized
in the Public Trust Doctrine, of encouraging broad public access

to our ocean beaches.



I want to focus today on our recommendation that the
Legislature should enact-comprehehsive legislation addressing
beach fees and operations as well as public access rights. 1In
our report; we recommend that such legislation, at the very
least, should address several concerns relating to beach fees and
beach access. | ‘

First, 1egislationvshou1d provide a uniform procedure

for state review and certification of beach budgets. ~ Second, the -
specific allowable costs should be legislatively articdl;ted and
festricted to a very limited rénge of necessary expenses that are
not reimbursable f:dm»other state and federal programs. zgigé,
'wg strongly favor ultimately.makihg the beaches ffeely availaSIe
to the public. However, in the interim, we think that, at the |
‘ veri'leaSt, thé Leéislafufe'should'estabiish a uniforﬁ'dap.oﬁ‘
daily beach‘fees. In imposing this cap, the Legislature should
:give particular consideration to the establishment of a method of
St&te subsidies for municipalities where legitimate beach
‘expenditures. exceed revenues from a legislatively capped beach
fee. Since the ocean beaches bélong to all the citizens of the
State, we believe that the State should assume some financial
responsibility for the imposition of a cap on daily beach fees to
facilitate broad public éccess. | |

In addressing an analogous issue, the State currently
provides'"in lieu of tax payment aid," to municipalities in order

- to make up for lost tax revenues because of nontaxable State
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property located within their borders. Eégégégé 54:4-2.2a et
seqg. There are-compelling reésons for treating ocean beaches. in
a similar fashion. The Public Trust Doctrine establishes a
stétewide policy of maximizing public access to our beaches. 1In
effedt,'the'ocean beaches Are State property held in trust for
all of our citizens by the municipalities. If municipalities can
demohstrate to appropriate staﬁe officials the ﬁnlikely
circumstance that the benefits do not offset legitimate and’
~'necéssary beacﬁ expenditures because of the cap on daily fees,
the State should similarly consider providing subsidies to offseﬁ
lost beach revenues in the affected mpnicipalities. In this
‘fashion, the municipaiities would not be bufdened with
expendltures that should rightfully be shared by all taxpayers of
the State. ‘

Fourth, every beach municipality should be required to
file a beach access plan to be approved by thevDepartment of
Environmental Protection (DEP). This plan should'provide
reasonable assurahces of eliminating the barriers to beach
-access, which haQe been the source of frequent complaints to our
Departmént. An effective beach access bill should include
provisions to require necessary facilities, access points and
adequate parking.: Additionally, the plan should include the
specific delineation of access rights of the public and the
corresponding obligations of the municipalities and the owners of

private dry sand beach areas to provide appropriate access to the

Ty



beaches. Fifth, in addition to providing for enforcement by the

DEP and the Public Advocate, there should be a citizen suit
provision authorizing private individnals to initiate litigation
to vindicate their rights under the act. Such a provision, we
believe, is a vital tool for preserving the public trust in ocean
beaches. | .’
A-3152 addresses many of these areas in a fashion
consistent with.onr reoommendations. ‘
| However, there are several issues identified by our
study whioh are not addressed in this bill. First, we think that
legislation should set forth the responsibility of‘private beach
'associations to make available a reasonable quantity of daily as
well as seasonal badge memberships at reasonable fees to the

nonresident public. In Matthews v. Bay Head Imgrovement

Association, 95 N.J. 306 (1984), the New Jersey Supreme Court

directed the Bay Head Improvement Assoc1ation (B.H.I.A.) to make
a :easonable quantity of daiiy and seasonal memberships availabiei
. to nonresidents at reasonable fees. However, the Court stopped
| short of requiring all other private associations along the New
- Jersey coast to open their memberships to nonresidents.’
Unfortunately, we are not aware of any private beach associations
that have voluntarily responded to»the spirit‘and languageiof‘the
Court's decision by opening up their memberships to the

nonresident public.



There are several important reasons for legislatively
addressing the obligations of private beach associations. Such
legislation would increase the supply of available public
beaches. It would also establish a policy that does noc merely
apply to Bay Head but, as a matter of fairness, is applicable to
all-private_beach associatione. Moreover, it would ensure
compliance with the dictates of the Matthews decision.

'-Second,_we recommend that the Legislature require that

municipalities to report their peach budgets to the Department of
Community Affairs, and also require that these budgets.be
certified by the DCA prior tolbeing impiemented. This would
provide State oversight of the‘beach fee eetting process and
ensure that beach expendltures are not lnflated.
. gg;;g we recommend that the leglslatlon expllc1t1y"
state that DEP possesses. the authorlty to approve or reject
proposed beach access plans that do not conform to the agency's
regulatory standards. This would clarify the agency's ability to
guarantee that municipalities establish and'implement.effective
public access plans. |

| Fcufth, after having carefully studied the vast
dlsparltles in beach fees' among shore munlclpalltles, we have
concluded that a leglslatlve cap on beach fees is the best way to
ensure uniformity and to promote the Public Trust Doctrine.

Because the ability of citizens to use the beach is dependent

-
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upon the cost of access, there is a corresponding State
obligation to establish an affordable beach fee.

ﬁinallx we support the inclusion of the citizen suit
provision to enable 1ndividual citizens to enforce the prov1s1ons_
of the Act. Often, state agencies do not have the resources to.
- pursue every individual action designed to vindicate legislative
policies. A citizen suit provision would allow persons to take
approptiate action where the state agency is nnwilling of unable
to prosecute an individual claim. '

In conclusion, I want to emphasize that the most
striking conclusion of our year long investigation was the
compelling need for legislative action to ensure that our
pprecious.ocean beaches can be shared equally by all citizens of‘
New Jersey."fhere is‘simply no reason why a family of,fouf'inﬂu
this State should be required to pay over.$4o for the opportunity
to enjoy a resonrce that rightfully belongs to everyone. The
Department of the Public Advocate urges the passage of
'comprenensive legislation to ensure uniformity among
municipalities in formulating beach fees and in protecting the
public's broad rights to access to ocean beaches.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
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BEACH ACCESS SURVEY

CONDUCTED BY THE ASSEMBLY SELECT COMMITTEE ON TOURISM

Name: (Optional)
Address:____ . ‘ | (Optional)
City: State: . Zip:

(Please fill in city and State in which &ou reside; this information is
necessary for survey purposes).

Please place a check mark to indicate your response for questions 1 through 9.

.

la) Do you feel dailf beach fees are:

Too High : Too Low Fair . = Other

b) Do you feel weekend beach fees are:

Too High . Too Low ' Fair- Other

c) Do you feel monthly beach fees are:

Too High - Too Low "Fair _ -Other

d) Do you feel seasonal beach ;eés are:

Too High " Too Low " Fair Other

2.) Do you feel beach admission ‘fees for all New Jersey beaches should be:
Free, run by the State. OR , Run by local municipalities
based on services provided.
3a) Are parking facilities for the beach:

Too Far Reasonably close

(OVER)

A%x



b) Are the fees charged for parking:

Fair ' Too Expensive

4.) Whenqdo you usually arrive at beach? a.m. p.m. »
(before noon) (afternoon)

5.) When you arrive do you have trouble finding a parking épot?

Always ‘ Sometimes Never

6.) Do you feel there are enough public access points off.the street to the
beach? : S e e T e, ‘

Yes | ' Ne

7.) Are you pleased with the services offered (i.e. lifeguard, restrooms,
showers, changing facilities, clean-up etec.)?

Very pleased Moderately pleas;d_ Not at all pleased

8.) What do you think could be done to make your visit to the beach more
pleasant?

9.) Would you be willigg to pay more for better services and facilities? -
e N
/ B
Yes No

il



